Supplementary information

Y. Wan, R. R.Wick, J. Zobel, D. J. Ingle, M. Inouye, and K. E. Holt

August 2020

GeneMates: an R Package for Detecting Horizontal Gene Co-transfer between Bacteria Using Gene-gene Associations Controlled for Population Structure

Contents

1	Supplementary figures						
2	Supj	plement	ary tables	21			
3	Supplementary details of implementation						
1 Supplementary figures 2 Supplementary details of implementation 3.1 Association analysis controlling for population structure 3.1.1 Representing allelic presence-absence status 3.1.2 Identifying presence-absence patterns 3.1.3 Column-wise zero-centring of the pattern matrix 3.1.4 Genotype matrix of biallelic core-genome SNPs 3.1.5 Calculation of a relatedness matrix 3.1.6 Singular-value decomposition of the SNP matrix 3.1.7 Projecting data points on axes defined by eigenvectors 3.1.8 Univariate linear mixed models and parameter estimation 3.1.9 Parameter estimation 3.1.10 Hypothesis tests for the fixed effect 3.2 Assessment of structural random effects 3.2.1 Posterior distribution of structural random effects 3.2.2 Bayesian chi-square tests of structural random effects 3.3.1 Score for allelic physical distances 3.3.2 Score for allelic physical distances 3.3.3 Overall score 3.4.1 Model equivalence 3.4.2 Equivalent posterior distributions of structural random effect 3.4.3	28						
		3.1.1	Representing allelic presence-absence status	28			
		3.1.2	Identifying presence-absence patterns	28			
		3.1.3	Column-wise zero-centring of the pattern matrix	29			
		3.1.4	Genotype matrix of biallelic core-genome SNPs	30			
		3.1.5	Calculation of a relatedness matrix	30			
		3.1.6	Singular-value decomposition of the SNP matrix	31			
		3.1.7	Projecting data points on axes defined by eigenvectors	33			
		3.1.8	Univariate linear mixed models and parameter estimation	36			
		3.1.9	Parameter estimation	38			
		3.1.10	Hypothesis tests for the fixed effect	40			
	3.2	Assess	ment of structural random effects	40			
		3.2.1	Posterior distribution of structural random effects	40			
		3.2.2	Bayesian chi-square tests of structural random effects	43			
	3.3	Scoring	g evidence of physical linkage	44			
		3.3.1	Score for association status	44			
		3.3.2	Score for allelic physical distances	45			
		3.3.3	Overall score	47			
	3.4	Further	discussions	48			
		3.4.1	Model equivalence	48			
		3.4.2	Equivalent posterior distributions of structural random effects .	52			
		3.4.3	Interpretations of the fixed effect size	55			
		3.4.4	Incapability of parameter estimation between identical variables	57			
4	Supj	olement	ary methods of the validation study	57			
	4.1	Collect	ion of whole-genome sequencing data	57			
	4.2 Extraction of core-genome SNPs						

4.3	Phylogenetic reconstruction	58
4.4	Detection of antimicrobial resistance genes	59
	4.4.1 Evaluation of allele-call reliability	59
4.5	De novo genome assembly	60
4.6	Measurement of allelic physical distances	60
4.7	Network analysis	61

1 Supplementary figures



Figure s1: A decision tree determining the association score s_a . The parameter p_0 is the threshold of p-values for significance. By convention, it may be set to 0.05 in practice, corresponding to a type-1 error rate of 5%.



Figure s2: A decision tree determining the consistency score *c*. IBD: identity by descent in terms of the presence-absence of consistent physical distances in bacterial genomes. r_{in} : range of in-group distances. ε : a threshold of r_{in} . The in-group distances are considered as consistent when $r_{in} < \varepsilon$. It may be twice the maximum error (with a unit of bp) to be tolerated for calling the distance measurements accurate (i.e., the error tolerance). p_{IBD} : an estimate of the probability that the presence of consistent physical distances in bacterial genomes is due to IBD. p_0 : an upper bound for p_{IBD} , above which the consistency in the distances is considered as IBD.



Figure s3: Antimicrobial resistance (AMR) genes detected in 169 *E. coli* genomes. (a) Frequencies and allele numbers of AMR genes sorted by AMR classes. Every gene is represented by a circle, either shaded (accessory) or unshaded (intrinsic), and is coloured by its associated AMR class. The diameter of each circle is proportional to the allele number labelled on the circle. (b) The number of genomes harbouring a particular number of accessory AMR genes followed a bimodal distribution. (c) Frequencies of 178 alleles of accessory AMR genes arranged in a descending order within each AMR class. AMR classes are labelled by antimicrobial classes that bacteria were resistant to: AGly, aminoglycosides; Bla, beta-lactams; Flq, fluoro-quinolones; MLS, macrolides/lincosamides/streptogramins; Phe, phenicols; Sul, sulfonamides; Tet, tetracyclines; and Tmt, trimethoprim.



Figure s4: A binary heat map showing presence-absence of 27 alleles of accessory AMR genes, each occurred at least four times in 169 *E. coli* genomes. Alleles of lower frequencies are excluded from this heat map for conciseness. In the heat map, rows represent genomes whose relationships are indicated in the midpoint-rooted core-genome ML phylogenetic tree; columns represent alleles and are clustered using a single-linkage method based on binary distances between columns. In this heat map, each grey box indicates absence of an allele in a genome, and each coloured box indicates presence of an allele in a given genome, with the colour linked to an AMR class. AMR classes: AGly, aminoglycosides; Bla, beta-lactams; Flq, fluoroquinolones; MLS, macrolides/lincosamides/streptogramins; Phe, phenicols; Sul, sulfonamides; Tet, tetracyclines; Tmt, trimethoprim. Data underlying this figure can be interactively visualised and downloaded from Microreact [1] following the link microreact.org/project/ifrfPqG_u.



Figure s5: AMR gene content of 359 *Salmonella* genomes. (a) Frequencies and allele numbers of AMR genes sorted by AMR classes. Every gene is represented by a circle, either shaded (accessory) or unshaded (intrinsic), and is coloured by its associated AMR class. (b) The number of genomes each harbouring a particular number of accessory AMR genes. (c) Frequencies of 56 alleles of 23 accessory AMR genes arranged in a descending order within each AMR class. AMR classes: AGly, aminoglycosides; Bla, beta-lactams; Phe, phenicols; Sul, sulfonamides; Tet, tetracyclines; Tmt, trimethoprim.



Figure s6: A binary heat map showing presence-absence of 22 alleles of SGI1-borne AMR genes in 359 *Salmonella* genomes. Rows represent genomes whose relationships are indicated in the midpoint-rooted core-genome ML phylogenetic tree, and columns represent alleles of five acquired AMR genes. The columns are clustered using a single-linkage method based on binary distances between columns. Each grey box indicates absence of an allele in a given genome. AMR classes: AGly, aminoglycosides; Bla, beta-lactams; Phe, phenicols; Sul, sulfonamides; Tet, tetracyclines. Original data underlying this figure can be interactively visualised and downloaded from Microreact following the link microreact.org/project/0bGpp3D-y.



Figure s7: A binary heat map showing presence-absence of 34 alleles of 18 acquired AMR genes that were not carried by SGI1 in 359 Salmonella genomes. Rows represent genomes whose relationships are indicated in the midpoint-rooted core-genome ML phylogenetic tree, and columns represent alleles of the AMR genes. The columns are clustered using a single-linkage method based on their binary distances. Each grey box in the heat map indicates absence of an allele in a given genome. AMR classes: AGly, aminoglycosides; Bla, beta-lactams; Phe, phenicols; Sul, sulfonamides; Tet, tetracyclines; Tmt, trimethoprim.



Figure s8: Binary heat maps showing distributions of identically distributed alleles of acquired AMR genes in (a) *E. coli* **or (b)** *Salmonella*. For each species, an ML phylogenetic tree is shown on the left side of each heat map. AMR classes: AGly, aminoglycosides; Flq, fluoroquinolones; MLS, macrolides, lincosamides, and streptogramins; Tmt, trimethoprim.



Figure s9: A summary of PCs obtained from core-genome relatedness matrices. (a) Cumulative percentage of total genetic variation captured by PCs of each species. According to Equation 23 in Section 3.1.7, when PCs are arranged in a descending order of their corresponding eigenvalues, the percentage of genetic variation captured by the first *k* PCs is calculated by the formula $\sum_{i=1}^{k} \lambda_i / \sum_{i=1}^{n} \lambda_i \times 100\%$, where λ_i is the *i*-th PC and *n* is the total number of PCs. Specifically, all genetic variation of the 169 *E. coli* genomes are captured by 159 PCs, where the first PC, first six PCs and the first 20 PCs capture 31.36\%, > 75% and > 95% of total variation, respectively; total genetic variation of the 359 *Salmonella* genomes are captured by 319 PCs, where the first PC, first 74 PCs and the first 191 PCs capture 11.29\%, > 75% and > 95% of the total variation, respectively. (b) Number of significant PCs contributing to presence-absence of the response pattern in an LMM. Significant PCs are determined based on a maximum of 0.05 for Bonferroni-corrected p-values. For each species, the number of PCs per response is grouped by the REML estimate of λ_0 . Considering both species, for patterns whose $\hat{\lambda}_0 < 10^5$, the count of significant PCs varies between one and five, while for patterns whose $\hat{\lambda}_0 \ge 10^5$, this count varies between 10 and 136.



Figure s10: A separate sub-network in the comparative network of *E. coli* and cooccurrence of its alleles in 169 *E. coli* genomes. In panel (a), a heat map shows co-occurrence events between nodes in the sub-network (b) and also shows an alignment of these events against the midpoint-rooted ML core-genome phylogenetic tree of *E. coli* genomes. Column names of the heat map denote node pairs labelled in panel *b*. Counts of alleles in the 169 genomes are displayed as digits between parentheses next to node labels in *b*. Asterisks beneath column names denote raw p-values (that is, without Bonferroni correction) between 1×10^{-4} and 5×10^{-3} from PLM-based association tests. Note that for each pair of these alleles, PLM-based p-values were the same, regardless roles (response or explanatory) of two alleles in their PLMs.



Figure s11: Accuracy of SPDs measured across at most five nodes in assembly graphs of *E. coli* genomes under two levels of error tolerance (0 or ± 1 kbp). The assembly graph was generated from imperfect simulated reads. A genome name and error tolerance are printed in each panel. Only accuracy rates from six out of ten genomes are shown in this figure for clarity. SPD: shortest-path distance.



Figure s12: Accuracy of SPDs measured across at most five nodes in assembly graphs of *Salmonella* genomes under two levels of error tolerance (0 or ± 1 kbp). The assembly graphs were generated from imperfect simulated reads. A genome name and error tolerance are printed in each panel. Only results from six out of ten genomes are shown here for clarity.



Figure s13: Accuracy of SPDs in contigs under six levels of error tolerance for 10 *E. coli* genomes. A genome name is shown at the top of each panel. Distance: the SPD between two alleles in a contig. Accuracy: percentage of SPDs differing from true distances by no more than a given error tolerance level. The neighbour-joining tree shows the mean whole-genome average nucleotide identity (ANI) calculated with FastANI v1.0 for each pair of genomes [2].



Figure s14: Accuracy of SPDs measured in contigs under six levels of error tolerance for 10 *S.* **Typhimurium genomes**. A genome name is printed to the top of each panel. We analysed all distances without a random sampling because the number of measurable distances in contigs is much smaller than that in assembly graphs. Distance: the shortest distance between two loci in an assembly graph. The neighbour-joining tree shows the mean whole-genome ANI calculated with FastANI v1.0 for each pair of genomes.



Figure s15: Distribution of six reliable SPDs measured between positively associated alleles *bla*_{TEM-214}**.147 and** *tet*(**A**) **in 15***E. coli* **genomes**. Genome assemblies in which reliable SPDs were obtained are highlighted with red circles on tips of the midpoint-rooted ML phylogenetic tree and are labelled by distance values.



Figure s16: Resolved structures of regions comprising alleles bla_{TEM-214}.147 and tet(A) in E. coli genomes. The alleles are denoted by their gene names in this figure. The SPD between these two alleles and the genome name are displayed on the left of each structure. The distribution of SPDs in *E. coli* genomes is illustrated in Figure s15. We annotated these regions via searching their nucleotide sequences against Enterobacteriaceae genomes in GenBank with megaBLAST. For each structure, a pair of red brackets show the region in which the SPD was measured. Grey shades between structures indicate homologous regions showing > 99% nucleotide identity. Green boxes with dashed borders represent two transposon sequences. Arrows and boxes filled with colour patterns denote pseudo genes or MGEs. All the six genetic structures contained a 4,950 bp Tn3-family transposon Tn2 (GenBank accession: KT002541, coordinates: 1-4,917), either complete or truncated (1,573 bp, in a single genome), showing a 100% nucleotide identity to each other. Repeats of partial TnAs1 sequences are highlighted using a purple-white filling pattern and had their lengths labelled nearby. The sign Δ denotes a truncated gene or a genetic element. Asterisks besides an MGE name indicates a variant of the corresponding MGE. Annotations for open reading frames (ORFs): ORF1, cysteine hydrolase (NCBI protein ID: AWA37038) gene; ORF2, a gene encoding an *EamA*-family transporter (NCBI protein ID: AYD32134); ORF3, a 243 bp relaxase (NCBI protein ID: AXE60424) gene, which is associated with insertion sequences and transposons; ORF4, a gene encoding a recombinase-family protein (NCBI protein ID: AXS38585); and ORF5, a gene encoding a Tn3-family transposase (NCBI protein ID: AXS38584). Pseudo genes: $\Delta tnpA$, a fragment of the 2,964 bp transposase gene (GenBank accession: CP022426, at coordinates 4,991,027–4,993,990) in TnAs1; Δhin , a 174 bp truncation remnant of a gene encoding a DNA-invertase Hin (GenBank accession: MG692690, at coordinates 2,971-3,387).



Figure s17: Reconstructed genetic structures for alleles *sul1* and *aadA2* in *Salmonella* genomes. (a) Distribution of the alleles in 359 *Salmonella* genomes. In the midpoint-rooted ML phylogenetic tree shown in the centre, red and blue circles highlight tips representing genomes from which SPDs between the two alleles were obtained. Particularly, the blue circle denotes the strain DT104, whose complete genome is available in GenBank. A single lineage from which all SPDs were obtained is coloured in orange. (b) A diagram showing genetic structure of the MDR region, which was created based on Figure 2 by Boyd, et al. [3]. Other genes within this region are omitted for simplicity. (c) An assembly graph (genome DRR006262) of double DNA strands in which the SPD between the alleles was 504 bp. (d) Double DNA strands of a single contig (genome ERR170653) harbouring both alleles, which were 504 bp apart in the contig.



Figure s18: A maximal clique of three alleles of AMR genes extracted from the linkage network of *E. coli* and distribution of its alleles in genomes. (a) Presence-absence of these alleles were positively associated, as determined using LMMs, and SPDs between these alleles were always measurable and consistent. (b) A ring plot created for this clique using GeneMates, which illustrates co-occurrence of all three alleles (red tiles in the outer most track) and presence-absence of individual alleles (tiles coloured in dark grey in inner tracks). A midpoint-rooted ML phylogenetic tree of *E. coli* genomes is shown in the middle.

2 Supplementary tables

Table s1: Overall scores given association scores and distance scores given perfect distance measurability ($m_{in} = 1$).

Scores		s _d 1	0	-1
	1	2	1	0
s_a	0	1	0	-1
	-1	0	-1	-2

Table s2: A summary of 10 MDR *E. coli* genomes used for determining reliability criteria for APDs. An accession number in the NCBI nucleotide database is provided for each nucleotide sequence. The sequence length is measured in base pairs (bp). Abbreviations: AMR, antimicrobial resistance; NA, not detected.

Strain	Sequence	Accession	Length	AMR genes
2011C-3493	chromosome	CP003289	5,273,097	ampH, ampC1, ampC2, mrdA,
				<i>drfA7</i> , <i>strA</i> , <i>strB</i> , <i>sul1</i> , <i>sul2</i> , <i>tet</i> (A)
	plasmid	CP003291	74,217	NA
	plasmid	CP003290	88,544	bla _{CTX-M-15} , bla _{TEM-105}
	plasmid	CP003292	1,549	NA
NRG_857C	chromosome	CP001855	4,747,819	ampH, ampC2, mrdA
	plasmid	CP001856	147,060	aadA1-pm, catA1, drfA1, mphB,
				strA, strB, sul1, sul2, tet(A),
				bla _{TEM-105}
Ecol_517	chromosome	CP018965	4,794,957	ampH, ampC1, ampC2, mrdA
	plasmid	CP018964	118,495	aac6-Ib, aadA5, bla _{CTX-M-15} ,
				catB4, dfrA7, mphA, bla _{OXA-1} ,
				sul1, tet(A)
	plasmid	CP018963	54,644	bla _{KPC-2}
Ecol_545	chromosome	CP018976	5,031,843	ampH, ampC1, ampC2, mrdA,
				bla _{CTX-M-15} , qnr-S1
	plasmid	CP018975	95,926	NA
	plasmid	CP018974	70,876	aac6-Ib, catB3, bla _{KPC-2} ,
				$bla_{\text{OXA-1}}, bla_{\text{TEM-105}}$
	plasmid	CP018973	70,152	bla _{CTX-M-27}
	plasmid	CP018972	4,073	NA
	plasmid	CP018971	3,164	NA
APEC_O1	chromosome	CP000468	5,082,025	ampH, ampC1, ampC2, mrdA
	plasmid	DQ381420	174,241	NA
	plasmid	DQ517526	241,387	aac3-VIa, aadA1-pm, sul1, tet(C)
PCN033	chromosome	CP006632	4,987,957	ampH, ampC2, mrdA, aac3-IId,
				bla _{TEM-105}
	plasmid	CP006633	3,319	NA
	plasmid	CP006634	4,086	NA

	plasmid	CP006635	161,511	aph3-Ia, dfrA17, oqxA, oqxB,
				<i>strA</i> , <i>strB</i> , <i>sul2</i> , <i>bla</i> _{TEM-105} , <i>tet</i> (B)
ST540a	chromosome	CP007390	4,807,977	ampH, ampC1, ampC2, mrdA,
				aph3-Ia, strA, strB, sul2,
				$bla_{\text{TEM-150}}, tet(A)$
Santai	chromosome	NZ_CP007592	5,104,557	ampH, ampC1, ampC2, mrdA,
				aac3-IId, aac6-Ib, aadA2, armA,
				arr3, catA1, catB3, dfrA12,
				floR, fosA, mphA, mphE, msrE,
				bla _{OXA-1} , strA, strB, sul1, sul2,
				$bla_{\text{TEM-105}}, tet(A)$
ECONIH1	chromosome	CP009859	5,310,511	ampH, ampC1, ampC2, mrdA,
				bla _{CTX-M-15}
	plasmid	CP009860	121,385	aadA5, dfrA17, ermB, mphA, sul1
	plasmid	CP009861	47,560	NA
	plasmid	CP009862	80,186	aac6-Ib, aadA1-pm, dfrA14,
				$bla_{\text{KPC-2}}$, $bla_{\text{OXA-9}}$, $strA$, $strB$,
				sul2, bla _{TEM-150}
EC958	chromosome	HG941718	5,109,767	ampH, ampC2, mrdA, bla _{CMY-23}
	plasmid	HG941719	135,602	aac6-Ib, aadA5, bla _{CTX-M-15} ,
				catB4, dfrA17, mphA, bla _{OXA-1} ,
				sul1, bla _{TEM-105} , tet(A)
	plasmid	HG941720	4,080	NA

Table s3: A summary of the 10 MDR S. Typhimurium genomes used for determining relia-
bility criteria for APDs. An accession number in the NCBI nucleotide database is provided for
each nucleotide sequence. The sequence length is measured in base pairs (bp). Abbreviations:
AMR, antimicrobial resistance; NA, not detected.

Strain	Sequence	Accession	Length	AMR genes
DT104	chromosome	HF937208	4,933,631	aac6-Iaa, aadA2, bla _{CARB-2} , floR,
				sul1, tet(G)
	plasmid	HF937209	94,034	NA
TW_Stm6	chromosome	CP019649	4,999,862	aac6-Iaa, strA, strB, sul2,
				$bla_{\text{TEM-105}}, tet(B)$
	plasmid	CP019647	275,801	aadA2, aadA1-pm, aphA2,
				cmlA1, dfrA12, strA, strB, sul3,
				$bla_{\text{TEM-105}}, tet(A)$
	plasmid	CP019648	4,083	NA
ST33676	chromosome	CP012681	4,809,574	aac6-Iaa
	plasmid	CP012683	112,639	cmy-17
	plasmid	CP012684	4,512	NA
	plasmid	CP012682	161,461	aac3-IId, aadA2, dfrA12, floR,
				oqxA, oqxB, strA, strB, sul2, sul3,
				tet(A)

T000240	chromosome	AP011957	4,954,814	aac6-Iaa, aadA1-pm, catA1,
				<i>bla</i> _{OXA-1} , <i>sul1</i> , <i>tet</i> (B)
	plasmid	AP011958	106,510	aac3-IId, aadA2, dfrA12, sul1
	plasmid	AP011959	8,670	strA, strB, sul2
	chromosome	CP003836	4,852,606	aac6-Iaa
11200	plasmid	CP004058	148,711	aadA2, aadA1-pm, cmlA1,
0288				dfrA12, sul3, bla _{TEM-105}
	plasmid	CP004059	11,067	strA, strB, sul2, tet(A)
	plasmid	CP004060	4,675	NA
ST81741	chromosome	CP019442	4,974,856	aac6-Iaa, tet(B)
	plasmid	CP019443	233,802	aac3-IId, aadA17, bla _{CTX-M-65} ,
				floR, lunF, sul2, bla _{TEM-105} ,
				tet(M)
	plasmid	CP019444	84,565	mphA, bla _{NDM-5} , bla _{TEM-105}
L3553	chromosome	AP014565	5,051,841	aac6-Iaa, aada2, cmy-17, dfrA12,
				floR, strA, strB, sul1, sul2, tet(A)
	plasmid	AP014566	132,611	aph3-Ia, sul1, bla _{TEM-105} , tet(A)
SO469809	chromosome	NZ_LN999997	5,037,238	aac6-Iaa, strA, strB, sul2,
				$bla_{\text{TEM-105}}, tet(B)$
WW012	chromosome	NZ_CP022168	4,991,167	aac6-Iaa, strA, strB, sul2, tet(B)
	plasmid	NZ_CP022169	151,609	aadA2, aadA1-pm, cmlA1,
				dfrA12, mcr-1, sul3
VNB151	chromosome	NZ_LT795114	4,985,374	aac6-Iaa, tet(B)
	plasmid	NZ_LT795115	246,444	aac3-Iva, aac6-Ib, aadA2, aadA1-
				pm, aph3-Ia, aph4-Ia, arr3,
				catB3, cmlA1, floR, bla _{OXA-1} ,
				oqxA, oqxB, sul1, sul2, sul3
	plasmid	NZ_LT795116	4,239	NA

Table s4: Number of queries unidentified in every assembly graph and contig file of *E. coli* genomes. Each query is a random CDS extracted from a complete genome for the distance measurement. Bandage runs the nucleotide BLAST to locate queries in each file so as to measure the physical distances. For specificity of analysis, we accepted the hit that covered at least 95% of a query path under a minimum nucleotide identity of 95% and a maximum e-value of 1×10^{-5} .

Strain	No. of queries	Missing hits in contig file	Missing hits in graph file
2011C-3493	5,150	229	43
NRG_857C	4,582	40	7
Ecol_517	4,932	103	37
Ecol_545	5,214	148	28
APEC_01	4,891	164	29
PCN033	5,076	74	20
ST540a	4,562	121	19
Santai	4,838	73	14
ECONIH1	5,322	143	18
EC958	5,100	113	25

Table s5: Number of queries unidentified in every assembly graph and contig file of *S*. Typhimurium genomes. Each query is a random CDS extracted from a complete genome for the distance measurement. Bandage runs the nucleotide BLAST to locate queries in each file so as to measure the physical distances. For specificity of analysis, we accepted the hit that covered at least 95% of a query path under a minimal nucleotide identity of 95% and a maximum e-value of 1×10^{-5} .

Strain	No. of queries	Missing hits in contig file	Missing hits in graph file
DT104	4,656	68	9
TW_Stm6	5,062	110	13
ST33676	4,767	58	11
T000240	4,871	78	19
U288	4,798	58	19
ST81741	5,172	85	18
L3553	5,106	69	15
SO469809	4,950	105	11
WW012	5,009	68	12
VNB151	5,133	79	17

Table s6: Accuracy of prioritised SPDs measured between alleles of accessory AMR genes in contigs and assembly graphs of *E. coli* genomes. Since there may be ≥ 2 copies of an allele at different loci in a genome, the reference distance to be compared to between two alleles was defined as the shortest one amongst all distances. The actual absolute value of errors given ≤ 2 nodes did not exceed 19 bp. N_i (*i* = 1,...,5): accuracy, number of accurate/all distances given $\leq i$ nodes.

Strain	N ₁	N ₂	N ₃	N ₄	N ₅
2011C-3493	100% (5/5)	100% (5/5)	100% (5/5)	100% (5/5)	75.00% (6/8)
APEC_O1	100% (6/6)	100% (6/6)	100% (6/6)	100% (6/6)	100% (6/6)
EC958	100% (9/9)	100% (9/9)	81.82% (9/11)	46.15% (12/26)	46.15% (12/26)
Ecol_517	100% (9/9)	100% (9/9)	39.29% (11/28)	39.29% (11/28)	36.11% (13/36)
Ecol_545	100% (3/3)	100% (4/4)	100% (4/4)	100% (5/5)	100% (5/5)
ECONIH1	100% (10/10)	93.33% (14/15)	90.00% (18/20)	90.00% (18/20)	83.33% (25/30)
NRG_857C	100% (16/16)	100% (16/16)	100% (22/22)	91.67% (22/24)	91.67% (22/24)
PCN033	100% (5/5)	100% (5/5)	33.33% (11/33)	33.33% (11/33)	27.50% (11/40)
Santai	100% (23/23)	100% (41/41)	86.54% (45/52)	86.54% (45/52)	60.49% (49/81)
ST540a	100% (3/3)	100% (3/3)	100% (3/3)	100% (3/3)	57.14% (4/7)
Margin	100% (89/89)	99.12% (112/113)	72.83% (134/184)	68.32% (138/202)	58.17% (153/263)

Table s7: Accuracy of prioritised SPDs measured between alleles of accessory AMR genes in contigs and assembly graphs of *S*. Typhimurium genomes. We filtered BLAST hits for a nucleotide identity and query coverage of 95%. The distances were prioritised based on our empirical discovery that the distance measurements were more accurate in contigs than were in assembly graphs. Since there may be ≥ 2 copies of an allele in different genomic loci of a genome, the reference distance to be compared with between two alleles was defined as the shortest one among all distances for this table. Error tolerance: ± 1 kb; N_i (i = 1, ..., 5): accuracy, number of accurate/all distances under a node number $\leq i$.

Strain	N ₁	N ₂	N ₃	N4	N5
DT104	100% (1/1)	66.67% (2/3)	71.43% (5/7)	77.78% (7/9)	80% (8/10)
L3553	100% (6/6)	100% (16/16)	92.00% (23/25)	80% (24/30)	72.73% (24/33)
SO469809	100% (3/3)	100% (3/3)	70.00% (7/10)	70% (7/10)	70% (7/10)
ST33676	100% (12/12)	100% (16/16)	59.26% (16/27)	47.06% (16/34)	38.10% (16/42)
ST81741	100% (3/3)	100% (5/5)	35.71% (10/28)	38.71% (12/31)	34.15% (14/41)
T000240	100% (10/10)	100% (14/14)	100% (16/16)	100% (16/16)	100% (16/16)
TW_Stm6	81.82% (9/11)	77.78% (14/18)	70% (14/20)	57.14% (24/42)	48.28% (28/58)
U288	100% (16/16)	100% (16/16)	76.19% (16/21)	76.19% (16/21)	76.19% (16/21)
VNB151	100% (36/36)	100% (42/42)	62.50% (60/96)	56.14% (64/114)	48.48% (64/132)
WW012	88.89% (8/9)	88.89% (8/9)	56.25% (9/16)	63.16% (12/19)	60% (12/20)
Margin	97.20% (104/107)	95.77% (136/142)	66.17% (176/266)	60.74% (198/326)	53.52% (205/383)

Table s8: Accuracy of prioritised SPDs measured between alleles of accessory AMR genes in contigs and assembly graphs of *S*. Typhimurium genomes. We filtered BLAST hits for a nucleotide identity and query coverage of 99%. The distances were prioritised based on our empirical discovery that the distance measurements were more accurate in contigs than were in assembly graphs. Since there may be ≥ 2 copies of an allele in different genomic loci of a genome, the reference distance to be compared with between two alleles was defined as the shortest one among all distances for this table. Error tolerance: ± 1 kb; N_i (i = 1, ..., 5): accuracy, number of accurate/all distances under a node number $\leq i$.

Strain	N ₁	N ₂	N ₃	N ₄	N ₅
DT104	100% (1/1)	66.67% (2/3)	71.43% (5/7)	77.78% (7/9)	80% (8/10)
L3553	100% (6/6)	100% (16/16)	92.00% (23/25)	80% (24/30)	72.73% (24/33)
SO469809	100% (3/3)	100% (3/3)	70.00% (7/10)	70% (7/10)	70% (7/10)
ST33676	100% (12/12)	100% (16/16)	59.26% (16/27)	47.06% (16/34)	38.10% (16/42)
ST81741	100% (3/3)	100% (5/5)	35.71% (10/28)	38.71% (12/31)	34.15% (14/41)
T000240	100% (10/10)	100% (14/14)	100% (16/16)	100% (16/16)	100% (16/16)
TW_Stm6	100% (8/8)	100% (11/11)	84.62% (11/13)	60% (21/35)	58.14% (25/43)
U288	100% (16/16)	100% (16/16)	76.19% (16/21)	76.19% (16/21)	76.19% (16/21)
VNB151	100% (36/36)	100% (42/42)	62.50% (60/96)	56.14% (64/114)	48.48% (64/132)
WW012	100% (6/6)	100% (6/6)	53.85% (7/13)	60% (9/15)	60% (9/15)
Margin	100% (101/101)	99.24% (131/132)	66.80% (171/256)	60.95% (192/315)	54.82% (199/363)

Table s9: SPDs between five alleles of SGI1-borne AMR genes in *Salmonella* genomes of our example data set. SPDs were measured in complete genomes, contigs, and assembly graphs. Rows are sorted by column N_r in a descending order. Columns: LMM, whether an LMM-based significant association is identified between two alleles (\bullet , yes; \circ , no); w_d, weighted distance score; N, number of all SPDs; SPD, range of all SPDs; N_{node}, numbers of nodes across which the SPDs were measured; N_r, number of reliable SPDs; SPD_r, range of reliable SPDs. For each pair of alleles, the percentage of reliable SPDs is calculated by formula $N_r/N \times 100\%$.

Allele pair	LMM	wd	Ν	SPD (bp)	Nnode	Nr	SPD _r (bp)
aadA2, sul1	•	0	295	504-9,964	1–3	294	504-9,964
bla _{CARB-2} , sul1	•	0.92	266	557-557	1-3	265	557-557
<i>floR</i> .12, <i>tet</i> (G)	•	0.99	202	937–937	1-1	202	937-937
$bla_{CARB-2}, tet(G)$	•	0.04	258	3,521-4,673	1–7	13	3,521-3,896
aadA2, tet(G)	•	0.04	254	3,473-4,620	1–7	11	3,473-3,843
bla _{CARB-2} , floR.12	•	0.04	186	1,745-5,634	1–3	10	1,745-5,634
sul1, tet(G)	•	0.03	250	3,185-710,475	1-44	8	4,757-4,945
floR.12, sull	0	0.03	181	6,301-7,058	1-13	7	6,870-7,058
aadA2, floR.12	•	0.02	181	1,692-5,586	1–3	6	1,692-5,586
aadA2, bla _{CARB-2}	0	0	249	5,221-704,968	1–57	1	8,540-8,540

Table s10: Physical distances measured from 45 pairs of positively associated alleles in 169 *E. coli* genomes. A minimum of two reliable SPDs were obtained for each pair. Columns: Co, co-occurrence count; M, measurability of all SPDs; M_r , measurability of reliable SPDs; P_r , $M_r/M \times 100\%$ — percentage of reliable SPDs in all SPDs; $P_{nongraph}$, percentage of reliable SPDs not measured in assembly graphs; C, consistency scores of SPDs.

Allele_1	Allele_2	Со	Μ	Mr	Pr	Pnongraph	С
dfrA7	sul1	19	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	1
strA.173	sul2.168	18	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	1
strB	sul2.168	18	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	1
catA1.215	bla_{OXA-1}	11	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	1
dfrA1	sat-2A	10	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	1
dfrA7	sul1.203	7	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	1
aadA1-pm.182	catA1.215	7	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	1
aadA1-pm.182	bla_{OXA-1}	7	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	1
mphA	sul1	5	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	1
aadA2.195	sul1	3	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	1
aadA2.195	catA1.215	3	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	1
aadA2.195	mphA	3	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	1
dfrA12	sul1	3	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	1
catA1.215	dfrA12	3	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	1
dfrA12	mphA	3	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	1
qepA.31	sul1	3	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	1
catA1.215	qepA.31	3	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	1
mphA	qepA.31	3	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	1
aadA5	sul1	3	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	1
dfrA17	sul1	3	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	1
aadA1-pm.181	dfrA1	2	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	1
aadA1-pm.181	sat-2A	2	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	1
aac(3)-IId.148	aadA2.195	2	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	0
aac(3)-IId.148	dfrA12	2	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	0
aac(3)-IId.148	gepA.31	2	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	0
aadA5	mphA	2	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	1
dfrA17	mphA	2	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	1
dfrA14.227	sul2	30	96.67%	96.67%	100.00%	82.76%	1
strB	sul2	45	95.56%	95.56%	100.00%	81.40%	1
dfrA14.227	strB	27	92.59%	92.59%	100.00%	84.00%	1
catA1.215	mphA	4	75.00%	75.00%	100.00%	100.00%	1
strA.173	strB	66	68.18%	68.18%	100.00%	97.78%	1
<i>strB</i> .153	sul2	20	65.00%	65.00%	100.00%	92.31%	1
strA.173	sul2	68	64.71%	63.24%	97.73%	90.70%	1
catA1.215	sul1	8	100.00%	62.50%	62.50%	100.00%	0
<i>strA</i> .173	bla TEM 214, 147	70	78.57%	37.14%	47.27%	100.00%	1
bla TEM 214, 147	tet(A)	43	100.00%	34.88%	34.88%	93.33%	0
dfrA8	strB.153	18	61.11%	33.34%	54.55%	100.00%	1
dfrA8	sul2	22	100.00%	22.73%	22.73%	100.00%	1
strB	tet(A)	32	87.50%	9.37%	10.71%	100.00%	0
strA.173	tet(A)	43	69.77%	9.30%	13.33%	100.00%	Ő
catA1.215	dfrA1	11	100.00%	9.09%	9.09%	100.00%	Ő
dfrA7	$bla_{\text{TEM 014}}$ 147	27	100.00%	7.41%	7.41%	100.00%	Ő
dfrA7	strA.173	27	100.00%	3.70%	3.70%	100.00%	õ
dfrA7	strB	27	100.00%	3.70%	3.70%	100.00%	0

Table s11: Physical distances measured from 15 pairs of positively associated alleles in 359 *Salmonella* genomes. A minimum of two reliable SPDs were obtained from each pair of alleles. Columns: Co, co-occurrence count; M, measurability of all SPDs; M_r , measurability of reliable SPDs in all SPDs; P_r , $M_r/M \times 100\%$ — percentage of reliable SPDs in all SPDs; $P_{nongraph}$, percentage of reliable SPDs not measured in assembly graphs; C, consistency score of SPDs.

Allele_1	Allele_2	Co	М	Mr	Pr	Pnongraph	Sd
dfrA14.79	strB	21	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	85.71%	1
floR.12	tet(G)	204	99.02%	99.02%	100.00%	100.00%	1
<i>strB</i>	sul2	20	95.00%	95.00%	100.00%	73.68%	1
dfrA14.79	sul2	19	94.74%	94.74%	100.00%	72.22%	1
aadA2	sul1	318	92.77%	92.45%	99.66%	14.63%	0
bla_{CARB-2}	sul1	288	92.36%	92.01%	99.62%	4.53%	1
aac(3)-Iva.65	strB	5	80.00%	60.00%	75.00%	66.67%	1
aph(4)-Ia	strB	5	80.00%	60.00%	75.00%	66.67%	1
strA.55	strB	16	25.00%	25.00%	100.00%	75.00%	1
strA.55	sul2	14	14.29%	14.29%	100.00%	50.00%	1
bla_{CARB-2}	floR.12	202	92.08%	4.95%	5.38%	30.00%	1
bla_{CARB-2}	tet(G)	279	92.47%	4.66%	5.04%	23.08%	1
aadA2	tet(G)	282	90.07%	3.90%	4.33%	27.27%	1
aadA2	floR.12	204	88.73%	2.94%	3.31%	33.33%	1
sul1	tet(G)	282	88.65%	2.84%	3.20%	50.00%	1

Table s12: SPDs measured in *E. coli* genomes between three alleles of the clique shown in Figure s18. All SPDs were obtained from single nodes in assembly graphs.

Allele1	Allele2	Distance (bp)	No. of distances
aadA1-pm.181	sat-2A	46	2
sat-2A	dfrA1	94	10
aadA1-pm.181	dfrA1	665	2

Table s13: Exact matches of the 3,084 bp MDR region in the genome assembly of *Salmonella* genome ERR026101 to the NCBI nucleotide database. All these hits showed the same bit score. The database was accessed in April, 2018.

Species	Strain	Plasmid	Size (bp)	Accession	Coordinates
Escherichia coli	MS7163	pMS7163B	84,078	CP026855	61,778–64,861
Escherichia coli	1283	p7	6,800	CP023375	2,487-5,570
Escherichia coli	S1.2.T2R	pCERC1	6,790	JN012467	97–3,180
Salmonella enterica	SA20084699	unnamed2	38,945	CP022499	6,380–9,463
Shigella sonnei	c8225	pABC-3	6,779	KT988306	97–3,180
Yersinia ruckeri	1521	pYR1521	5,021	HG423538	924–4,007

3 Supplementary details of implementation

Section Implementation of the main article outlines our network approach that identifies horizontally co-transferred alleles of acquired genes in bacteria. Herein we show a full mathematical justification of this approach. Specifically, we describe association analysis and distance assessment for network construction, and demonstrate statistical tests for structural random effects that contribute to allelic presence-absence status across bacterial genomes. By convention, we use boldface upper-case letters to represent matrices, boldface lower-case letters for vectors, and a regular typeface for scalars. All mathematical expressions are italicised.

3.1 Association analysis controlling for population structure

In order to determine edges in a linkage network, we test for fixed effect of an explanatory allele on presence-absence of a response allele for each linear mixed model (LMM) that takes bacterial population structure and environmental randomness into account. Herein we derive a stringent procedure from existing methods for network construction.

3.1.1 Representing allelic presence-absence status

The first step in our association analysis is to represent the presence-absence of alleles in all bacterial genomes using a matrix. Assuming that *m* alleles of *M* genes ($m \ge M$) are identified in *n* genomes, let an $n \times m$ binary matrix $\mathbf{A} = (a_{ij})$ represent the presenceabsence of every allele across genomes, where the (i, j)-th element a_{ij} of \mathbf{A} equals one if the *j*-th allele is present in the *i*-th genome and otherwise equals zero (cf., the manual of GEMMA [4]). This designation of one and zero to presence-absence status makes the explanation of results straightforward, although it is merely arbitrary and has no impact on conclusions. Following this designation, matrix \mathbf{A} is essentially an allelic presenceabsence matrix (PAM), where rows represent genomes and columns represent alleles. In particular, we do not include any allele that does not show variation in its distribution, namely, any allele showing a frequency of zero or one is excluded from our analysis in order to observe a fundamental assumption for linear models — variables must be random. Problems arise when this assumption is violated. For example, a perfect fit of an explanatory variable to a constant response is seen in a linear model, where the coefficient of the explanatory variable equals zero as we can expect.

3.1.2 Identifying presence-absence patterns

In practice, it is not unusual to see several alleles sharing the same distribution in samples. For instance, the allelic co-transfer of tetracycline resistance gene tet(G) and its

regulatory gene tetR(G) between *S*. Typhimurium has been reported [5]. Mathematically, identically distributed alleles are interchangeable in association tests and produce the same result. As a result, these duplicated tests lead to an excessively rigorous adjustment of p-values for controlling false positives as they enlarge the number of tests. Consequently, the power of tests is compromised. To retain statistical power, we learn from R package BugWAS [6] and take a single allele from each group of identically distributed alleles as a representative for all relevant association tests. Particularly, we call this representative a presence-absence pattern.

Assuming there are *p* patterns representing *m* alleles, where $p \le m$, we can compress the $n \times m$ allelic PAM **A** into an $n \times p$ binary matrix $\mathbf{B} = (b_{ij})$, whose rows denote genomes and columns denote patterns. We call **B** a pattern matrix. In the example below, we merge the first and fourth columns, the third and fifth columns of **A**, respectively, into two columns to make a pattern matrix **B**. Note that neither rows nor columns of **A** and **B** have to be sorted.

$$\boldsymbol{A} = \begin{bmatrix} 1 & 1 & 1 & 1 & 1 \\ 0 & 1 & 1 & 0 & 1 \\ 0 & 0 & 1 & 0 & 1 \end{bmatrix} \Rightarrow \boldsymbol{B} = \begin{bmatrix} 1 & 1 & 1 \\ 0 & 1 & 1 \\ 0 & 0 & 1 \end{bmatrix}$$
(1)

3.1.3 Column-wise zero-centring of the pattern matrix

Zero-centring random variables of the same population by their arithmetic means is a common technique for simplifying algebra without changing the distribution of data points or affecting results. Herein, we treat each pattern as a column vector of *n* dichotomous variables representing presence-absence of the same allele in *n* genomes. Accordingly, we define an $n \times p$ column-wisely zero-centred pattern matrix $\mathbf{X} = (x_{ij})$ as follows:

$$x_{ij} = b_{ij} - \frac{1}{n} \sum_{k=1}^{n} b_{kj} = b_{ij} - \bar{b}_{.j}, \text{ where } 1 \le i \le n \text{ and } 1 \le j \le p$$

$$(2)$$

Accordingly, the presence-absence status of an allele belonging to the *j*-th pattern in the *i*-th genome appears as follows in the centred pattern matrix X:

$$x_{ij} = \begin{cases} 1 - \bar{b}_{.j} > 0, & \text{presence} \\ -\bar{b}_{.j} < 0, & \text{absence} \end{cases}$$
(3)

Note that the column mean $\bar{b}_{,j}$ equals the frequency of each allele represented by the *j*-th pattern in *n* genomes. It is known that every column of **X** sums to zero:

$$\sum_{k=1}^{n} x_{kj} = (1 - \bar{b}_{.j})(\bar{b}_{.j}n) + (-\bar{b}_{.j})(n - \bar{b}_{.j}n) = 0$$
(4)

This property applies to other zero-centred binary matrices as well.

3.1.4 Genotype matrix of biallelic core-genome SNPs

The construction of a genotype matrix from biallelic core-genome single-nucleotide polymorphisms (cgSNPs) imports genetic variation for estimating population structure of sampled bacterial genomes. In our approach, a cgSNP site is strictly defined as a single-nucleotide polymorphic site that is present in all genomes. This constraint is a known limitation of current methods that incorporate population structure into linear models using principal components (PCs) [4, 7].

Assuming there are *L* biallelic cgSNP sites identified in *n* genomes and *n* < *L*, we define an *n* × *L* binary genotype matrix $G = (g_{ij})$, where $1 \le i \le n, 1 \le j \le L$, and

$$g_{ij} = \begin{cases} 0, & \text{major allele} \\ 1, & \text{minor allele} \end{cases}$$
(5)

We treat each single-nucleotide polymorphism (SNP) site as a dichotomous random variable observed in *n* genomes. Accordingly, we can also zero-centre columns of *G* by column means to simplify algebra, creating an $n \times L$ column-wise zero-centred genotype matrix $S = (s_{ij})$:

$$s_{ij} = g_{ij} - \frac{1}{n} \sum_{k=1}^{n} g_{kj} = g_{ij} - \bar{g}_{.j} = \begin{cases} -\bar{g}_{.j} < 0, & \text{major allele} \\ 1 - \bar{g}_{.j} > 0, & \text{minor allele} \end{cases}$$
(6)

Note that column mean $\bar{g}_{,j}$ equals the minor allele frequency (MAF) of the *j*-th cgSNP site in *n* genomes. According to Equation 4, we know that every column of **S** sums up to zero as well. Furthermore, the maximum rank of **S** reduces by 1 from *n* as its columns have been zero-centred [8]. Hence we have:

$$\operatorname{rank}(\boldsymbol{S}) \leqslant n - 1 \tag{7}$$

More generally, we have $rank(\mathbf{S}) \leq min\{n-1,L\}$ when removing the assumption that n < L for the SNP matrix.

3.1.5 Calculation of a relatedness matrix

A relatedness matrix captures population structure and plays a pivotal role in introducing the population structure into linear models. In our implementation of GeneMates, function *findPhysLink* calls GEMMA to calculate this relatedness matrix [4]. Following the manual of GEMMA (github.com/genetics-statistics/GEMMA), we calculate an $n \times n$ relatedness matrix $\mathbf{K} = (k_{ij})$ from the centred SNP matrix \mathbf{S} (Note that GEMMA performs column-wise zero-centring on \mathbf{G} before calculating \mathbf{K}) with formula

$$\boldsymbol{K} = \frac{\boldsymbol{S}\boldsymbol{S}^T}{L} \tag{8}$$

where the superscript T denotes a matrix transpose and this notation will be used throughout this document. The relatedness matrix \boldsymbol{K} reveals all-to-all relationships between the *n* genomes. It is a symmetric matrix because

$$k_{ij} = \frac{1}{L} \sum_{r=1}^{L} s_{ir} s_{jr} = \frac{1}{L} \sum_{r=1}^{L} s_{jr} s_{ir} = k_{ji}$$
(9)

where $1 \le i, j \le n$. As such, both rows and columns of **K** denote genomes. Moreover, given the inequality (Formula 7), the relatedness matrix **K** is positive semidefinite and rank(**K**) = rank(**S**) (Theorems 2.6D and 2.4A in a book by Rencher [9]).

3.1.6 Singular-value decomposition of the SNP matrix

This is a critical step for converting the population structure into an orthogonal form, which can be incorporated into an LMM afterwards for term of structural random effects. Let $r = \operatorname{rank}(\mathbf{K})$. Since **K** is a symmetric matrix of order *n*, we can perform eigendecomposition on it, which returns n real eigenvalues (cf. Theorem 2.12C in the book by Rencher [9]) and n accompanying linearly independent column vectors, even though some eigenvalues may be the same. Moreover, the eigenvalues must not be negative but may equal zero, because **K** is a positive semidefinite matrix. Let $\lambda_1 \ge \lambda_2 \ge \cdots \ge \lambda_n \ge 0$ represent these eigenvalues sorted in a descending order. Note that there must be positive eigenvalues because square matrix **K** is positive semidefinite (To put it simple, there must be positive eigenvalues of K, because the sum of its eigenvalues equals its trace and the trace must be positive as entries on the main diagonal of the relatedness matrix, i.e., entries representing self-relatedness, must be positive). To avoid confusions, we refer an eigenvector (in a narrow sense) of \mathbf{K} to an orthonormal vector obtained from the linearly independent vectors aforementioned through the Gram-Schmidt process and subsequent normalisation, although in a broad sense, all of these untransformed vectors are also eigenvectors of K (linearly independent, but are not necessarily orthogonal). Of note, the Gram-Schmidt process itself shows that it retains the link between eigenvalues and broad-sense eigenvectors when it is applied.

Therefore, we obtain and can only obtain *n* eigenvectors e_1, \dots, e_n corresponding to the non-negative eigenvalues $\lambda_1, \dots, \lambda_n$ of **K**. By definition, these eigenvectors are orthonormal bases of an *n* dimensional real Euclidean space $V^n \subset \mathbb{R}^n$, in which each genome is a data point pinned down by *n* coordinates. Note that the orientation of each base (hence that of the axis) is merely arbitrary and relies on the corresponding eigenvalue. As a result, reversing one eigenvector has no impact on the orthonormality of bases. Using the *n* eigenvectors, we can construct an $n \times n$ matrix $\mathbf{E} = [\mathbf{e}_1 \cdots \mathbf{e}_n]$. This is an orthonormal matrix as $\mathbf{E}^T \mathbf{E} = \mathbf{E}\mathbf{E}^T = \mathbf{I}_n$ (an identity matrix of order *n*) and we can immediately know that $\mathbf{E}^{-1} = \mathbf{E}^T$. Since **K** is a symmetric matrix of real numbers and **E** is invertible, we have $\mathbf{E}^{-1}\mathbf{K}\mathbf{E} = \text{diag}(\lambda_1, \lambda_2, \dots, \lambda_n)$ and $r = \text{rank}(\mathbf{K}) = \text{rank}(\mathbf{E}^{-1}\mathbf{K}\mathbf{E})$. Therefore, *r* is the number of non-zero (hence positive) eigenvalues of **K**, and n - requals the number of its zero eigenvalues (cf. Chapter 2.12.5 in Rencher's book [9]). As we will be demonstrating in following algebra, this is an important property for obtaining correct transformation of population structure, however, it has not been taken into account in literature so far to our knowledge.

Further, since a singular value of K is defined as the non-negative square root of one of its eigenvalues, there is always an equal number of singular values and eigenvalues of the same relatedness matrix, regardless whether there are duplicated values or not. Using singular-value decomposition (SVD) on real matrices, we can decompose the biallelic cgSNP matrix S into a product of matrices:

$$\boldsymbol{S}_{n \times L} = \boldsymbol{P}_{n \times n} \boldsymbol{\Sigma}_{n \times L} \boldsymbol{Q}_{L \times L}^{T}$$
(10)

where the matrices

$$\boldsymbol{P} = \begin{bmatrix} \boldsymbol{U}_{n \times r} & \boldsymbol{N}_{n \times (n-r)} \end{bmatrix}$$
(11)

$$\boldsymbol{\Sigma} = \begin{bmatrix} \boldsymbol{D}_{r \times r} & \boldsymbol{O}_{r \times (L-r)} \\ \boldsymbol{O}_{(n-r) \times r} & \boldsymbol{O}_{(n-r) \times (L-r)} \end{bmatrix}$$
(12)

$$\boldsymbol{Q}^{T} = \begin{bmatrix} \boldsymbol{V}_{L \times r} & \boldsymbol{W}_{L \times (L-r)} \end{bmatrix}^{T}$$
(13)

To be more specific, columns of P are eigenvectors (also known as left singular vectors) of $SS^T = LK$, which correspond to the r positive eigenvalues and n - r zero eigenvalues (notice eigenvectors of LK are the same as K but eigenvalues are L times those of K); columns of Q are eigenvectors (right singular vectors) of $M = (m_{ij}) = S^T S$ (scatter matrix), which correspond to the same r positive eigenvalues and L - r zero eigenvalues of LK; D is a diagonal square matrix of r positive singular values of both SS^T and $S^T S$; and O denotes a zero matrix of a given size. Both matrices P and Q are orthonormal. In addition, the scatter matrix M equals n - 1 times the genome variance-covariance matrix of un-centred cgSNP genotypes because

$$m_{ij} = \sum_{k=1}^{n} s_{ki} s_{kj} = (n-1) \sum_{k=1}^{n} \frac{s_{ki} s_{kj}}{n-1} = (n-1) \sum_{k=1}^{n} \frac{(g_{ki} - \bar{g}_{.i})(g_{kj} - \bar{g}_{.j})}{n-1}$$
(14)
= $(n-1) \operatorname{Cov}(\boldsymbol{g}_i, \boldsymbol{g}_j)$

where vectors \boldsymbol{g}_i and \boldsymbol{g}_j denote the *i*-th and *j*-th columns of the un-centred cgSNP matrix \boldsymbol{G} , respectively.

For conciseness, singular values are arranged in a descending order. Therefore, each of the matrices U and V is comprised of r eigenvectors corresponding to the r positive eigenvalues, and the matrices N and W are comprised of n - r and L - r eigenvectors corresponding to zero eigenvalues, respectively. Now we show that

$$\boldsymbol{S}_{n \times L} = \begin{bmatrix} \boldsymbol{U}_{n \times r} & \boldsymbol{N}_{n \times (n-r)} \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} \boldsymbol{D}_{r \times r} & \boldsymbol{O}_{r \times (L-r)} \\ \boldsymbol{O}_{(n-r) \times r} & \boldsymbol{O}_{(n-r) \times (L-r)} \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} \boldsymbol{V}_{L \times r}^{T} \\ \boldsymbol{W}_{L \times (L-r)}^{T} \end{bmatrix}$$

$$= \begin{bmatrix} \boldsymbol{U} \boldsymbol{D} & \boldsymbol{O}_{n \times (L-r)} \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} \boldsymbol{V}_{L \times r}^{T} \\ \boldsymbol{W}_{L \times (L-r)}^{T} \end{bmatrix} = \boldsymbol{U} \boldsymbol{D} \boldsymbol{V}^{T}$$
(15)

Accordingly, we can deduce that $\operatorname{rank}(S) = \operatorname{rank}(P\Sigma Q^T) = \operatorname{rank}(\Sigma)$ because $\operatorname{rank}(\Sigma) = \operatorname{rank}(D) = r$ and columns of P and Q are orthonormal (hence both matrices are nonsingular and invertible). Notice neither U nor V is invertible when r < n because they are not square matrices under this condition, and then we can only have $U^T U = V^T V = I_r$.

Since matrices N and W always get cancelled out in Equation 15, we call Equation $S = UDV^T$ the reduced form of SVD, which is equivalent to the full form, $S = P\Sigma Q^T$. Consequently, we can completely recover S only with r eigenvectors in U and V corresponding to the r positive singular values in D instead of using all eigenvectors in P and Q. Therefore, this substitution simplifies our computation. Nonetheless, as we will demonstrate later, we can benefit from orthonormal matrices in the full form of SVD in simplification of some equations.

3.1.7 Projecting data points on axes defined by eigenvectors

Projections can be acquired through both the full and reduced forms of SVD We consider every bacterial genome as a data point in an *L* dimensional real Euclidean space $V^L \subset \mathbb{R}^L$ using genotypes of *L* biallelic cgSNPs as coordinates. These coordinates may not be linearly independent because of homoplasy, parallel evolution, linkage disequilibrium, SNP-call errors, and so forth. Noticing $Q^T Q = I_L$, we obtain an orthogonal transformation of rows (that is, coordinate vectors of genomes) in *S* through multiplying the orthonormal matrix Q with equation

$$\boldsymbol{S} = \boldsymbol{P}\boldsymbol{\Sigma}\boldsymbol{Q}^T \Leftrightarrow \boldsymbol{S}\boldsymbol{Q} = \boldsymbol{P}\boldsymbol{\Sigma}$$
(16)

Let an $n \times L$ matrix $C_L = SQ = P\Sigma$, where $C_L = [c_1 \cdots c_L]$ and the length-*n* column vector c_i ($1 \le i \le L$) is the *i*-th column of C_L . Similarly, we define the *j*-th ($1 \le j \le n$) column of P and the *j*-th singular value in Σ as p_j and σ_j , respectively. Then we have

$$\boldsymbol{C}_{L} = \boldsymbol{P}\boldsymbol{\Sigma} = \begin{bmatrix} \boldsymbol{p}_{1} & \cdots & \boldsymbol{p}_{r} & \boldsymbol{p}_{r+1} & \cdots & \boldsymbol{p}_{n} \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} \operatorname{diag}(\boldsymbol{\sigma}_{1}, \cdots, \boldsymbol{\sigma}_{r}, 0, \cdots, 0) & \boldsymbol{O}_{n \times (L-n)} \end{bmatrix}$$
$$= \begin{bmatrix} \boldsymbol{\sigma}_{1} \boldsymbol{p}_{1} & \cdots & \boldsymbol{\sigma}_{r} \boldsymbol{p}_{r} & 0 \boldsymbol{p}_{r+1} & \cdots 0 \boldsymbol{p}_{n} & \mathbf{0} & \cdots & \mathbf{0} \end{bmatrix}$$
$$= \begin{bmatrix} \boldsymbol{\sigma}_{1} \boldsymbol{p}_{1} & \cdots & \boldsymbol{\sigma}_{r} \boldsymbol{p}_{r} & \mathbf{0} & \cdots & \mathbf{0} \end{bmatrix}_{n \times L}$$
(17)

Hence $C_L = [\sigma_1 p_1 \cdots \sigma_r p_r \ \mathbf{0} \cdots \mathbf{0}]$, which consists of L - r zero column vectors. Since $c_i = \sigma_i p_i$, $1 \le i \le n$, we know that c_i equals the *i*-th eigenvector of the scatter matrix $S^T S$ (positive semidefinite and of the same rank as S) scaled by its *i*-th singular value σ_i . We notice the non-zero partition of C_L in Equation 17 can be acquired via the reduced form of SVD:

$$\boldsymbol{S} = \boldsymbol{U}\boldsymbol{D}\boldsymbol{V}^{T} \Leftrightarrow \boldsymbol{S}\boldsymbol{V} = \boldsymbol{U}\boldsymbol{D} = \begin{bmatrix} \boldsymbol{p}_{1} & \cdots & \boldsymbol{p}_{r} \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} \sigma_{1} & \cdots & 0 \\ \vdots & \ddots & \vdots \\ 0 & \cdots & \sigma_{r} \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} \sigma_{1}\boldsymbol{p}_{1} & \cdots & \sigma_{r}\boldsymbol{p}_{r} \end{bmatrix}$$
(18)

which gives $C_r = [c_1 \cdots c_r] = [\sigma_1 p_1 \cdots \sigma_r p_r]$, where notation C_r represents a sub-matrix comprised of the first *r* columns of C_L . As elucidated in following paragraphs, vectors c_1, \cdots, c_n are projections of genomes onto axes defined by eigenvectors p_1, \cdots, p_n .

The projections remain in the same Euclidean space Since the inner product $c_i^T c_j = \sigma_i p_i^T \sigma_j p_j = 0$, Equation 17 also shows that vectors $c_1, ..., c_n$ are orthogonal and in parallel with orthonormal bases $p_1, ..., p_n$ of the *n* dimensional Euclidean space V^n described previously.

Similarly, we expand the $n \times L$ matrix product **SQ** in Equation 16 into a matrix comprised of inner products of vectors:

$$\boldsymbol{S}\boldsymbol{Q} = \begin{bmatrix} \boldsymbol{s}_1 \\ \vdots \\ \boldsymbol{s}_n \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} \boldsymbol{q}_1 & \cdots & \boldsymbol{q}_L \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} \boldsymbol{s}_1 \boldsymbol{q}_1 & \cdots & \boldsymbol{s}_1 \boldsymbol{q}_L \\ \vdots & \ddots & \vdots \\ \boldsymbol{s}_n \boldsymbol{q}_1 & \cdots & \boldsymbol{s}_n \boldsymbol{q}_L \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} \boldsymbol{c}_1 & \cdots & \boldsymbol{c}_L \end{bmatrix}$$
(19)

where \mathbf{s}_i $(i = 1, \dots, n)$ is the *i*-th row vector $[s_{i1}, \dots, s_{iL}]$ of \mathbf{S} and \mathbf{c}_j $(j = 1, \dots, L)$ is a column vector of length *n*. Vector \mathbf{c}_j shows "coordinates" (strictly specaking, scaling coefficients of bases that define axes) on *L* "axes" (namely, binary SNP codes, which are often mutually correlated between genomes and hence are not genuine bases of a linear space) that locate the *i*-th genome in space \mathbf{V}^L . Therefore, $\mathbf{c}_j = [\mathbf{s}_1 \mathbf{q}_j \cdots \mathbf{s}_n \mathbf{q}_j]^T$,

where $j = 1, \dots, L$. Note that every one of c_{r+1}, \dots, c_L equals **0** following Equation 17. Furthermore, we can write the *i*-th row of C_L in an alternative form:

$$\begin{bmatrix} c_{i1} & \cdots & c_{iL} \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} \boldsymbol{s}_i \boldsymbol{q}_1 & \cdots & \boldsymbol{s}_i \boldsymbol{q}_L \end{bmatrix} = \boldsymbol{s}_i \boldsymbol{Q}$$
(20)

which represents an orthonormal transformation of \mathbf{V}^L itself (denoted by $\mathbf{V}^L \to \mathbf{V}^L$) and shows that c_{i1}, \dots, c_{iL} are projections of coordinates s_{i1}, \dots, s_{iL} via the orthonormal matrix \mathbf{Q} . Since \mathbf{c}_i is orthogonal to \mathbf{c}_j when $i \neq j$, we transform correlated vectors $[s_{1i}, \dots, s_{ni}]^T$ and $[s_{1j}, \dots, s_{nj}]^T$ ("coordinates" of the *n* genomes on the *i*-th and *j*-th axes of SNPs) into orthogonal coordinates \mathbf{c}_i and \mathbf{c}_j with Equation 20 as a benefit of SVD. This equation is known as a rotation transformation, which preserves the distribution of data points but establishes a set of orthogonal axes going through the same origin (i.e., builds another coordinate system). Therefore, projections on every new axis, namely, elements in vector \mathbf{c}_i , are also zero-centred. In addition, matrix \mathbf{Q} is also known as a rotation matrix.

The projections and matrices show profound interconnections As for the *i*-th element in c_i , it follows

$$c_{ij} = \mathbf{s}_i \mathbf{q}_j = \sum_{k=1}^L q_{kj} s_{ik} \tag{21}$$

which means the coordinate of the *i*-th genome on the *j*-th projection axis (either defined by p_j when $j \leq n$ or being **0** with any directions when $n < j \leq L$) is a linear combination of all its SNP "coordinates" using elements in q_j as weights. This equation reveals profound connections between the SNP matrix *S*, the relatedness matrix *K* of genomes, the variance-covariance matrix *M* of biallelic cgSNPs, and the projections of genomes on a group of orthogonal axes through SVD.

Principal components are bases establishing *r* **orthogonal axes where data points are projected onto** According to the reduced form of SVD (Equation 18) and Equation 20, the *r* eigenvectors p_1, \dots, p_r , which are columns of *U* and bases of an *r* dimensional Euclidean space V^r , are called PCs of *S* [7, 8]. As shown in Equations 18 and 19, projection c_i ($i = 1, \dots, r$) of *n* data points on the *i*-th axis is comprised of transformed coordinates and hence reflects the length of the scaled *i*-th PC, which are therefore referred to as scores in literature. Since PCs are ranked by their accompanying eigenvalues in a descending order, people often use the first a few PCs to capture the majority of variation in data for an approximation in their analysis (for example, in principal component regression [10]), which is usually more computationally efficient than using all PCs. For GeneMates, however, we use all PCs in order to capture all variation in SNP data (Figure s9).

Each eigenvalue measures the percentage of genetic variation captured by the corresponding principal component Considering the variance of data projections on the *j*-th ($j \le n$) axis, namely, the variance in the length of the *j*-th PC, since projections remain zero-centred, all their arithmetic means equal zero. Accordingly, we can determine the sample variance of c_{1j}, \dots, c_{nj} through equation

$$\operatorname{Var}(\boldsymbol{c}_{j}) = \operatorname{Var}(c_{1j}, \cdots, c_{nj}) = \frac{1}{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \left(c_{ij} - \bar{c}_{.j} \right)^{2} = \frac{1}{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n} c_{ij}^{2} = \frac{\boldsymbol{c}_{j}^{I} \boldsymbol{c}_{j}}{n-1}$$
(22)

According to Equation 17, since $\boldsymbol{c}_j^T \boldsymbol{c}_j = (\sigma_j \boldsymbol{p}_j)^T (\sigma_j \boldsymbol{p}_j) = \sigma_j^2 \boldsymbol{p}_j^T \boldsymbol{p}_j = \lambda_j \cdot 1$, we have

$$\operatorname{Var}(\boldsymbol{c}_j) = \frac{\lambda_j}{n-1} \propto \lambda_j, (j \leqslant n)$$
(23)

which shows that projections of data points $1, \dots, n$ on the *j*-th axis have a variance proportional to the *j*-th eigenvalue. This equation also shows that singular value σ_j can be obtained from $\sigma(c_j)$, the standard deviation of observed lengths of the *j*-th PC:

$$\sigma_j = \sqrt{\lambda_j} = \sqrt{n-1}\sigma(\boldsymbol{c}_j) \tag{24}$$

The rank of relatedness matrix *K* determines the minimum number of principal components required for capturing all genetic variation in sample genomes Equation 23 shows that projections on the first *r* axes (in parallel with orthonormal bases p_1, \dots, p_r) always have variances greater than zero (hence are informative), while projections on the other n - r axes (in parallel with orthonormal bases p_{r+1}, \dots, p_n) all fall into the origin and hence do not show any variance (uninformative). Moreover, we do not consider projections on the rest of L - n axes because these axes are always **0** of any directions and all of these projections do not diverge from the origin either. Consequently, all variances in the distribution of data points are captured by the first *r* axes, and the proportion of total variance captured by the *i*-th ($i \leq r$) axis equals λ_i divided by the sum of all *r* positive eigenvalues.

3.1.8 Univariate linear mixed models and parameter estimation

For genes of interest, we use LMMs to explain the presence-absence of a response allele with a fixed effect of the presence-absence of an explanatory allele, additive random effects of population structure, and environmental random effects. Specifically, alleles are represented with patterns as described in Section 3.1.2. For any two out of p columns (denoted by \mathbf{x} and \mathbf{y} , where $\mathbf{x} \neq \mathbf{y}$) in the zero-centred pattern matrix \mathbf{X} , we consider \mathbf{y} as the sum of a fixed effect of x, additive random effects of population structure (particularly, we call them structural random effects), and environmental random effects. In literature, structural random effects are also known as lineage effects or background effects [6]. Following our notations, we construct a univariate LMM with four parameters to explain observations in vector y:

$$\mathbf{y} = \mathbf{1}\boldsymbol{\alpha} + \mathbf{x}\boldsymbol{\beta} + \mathbf{C}_L \boldsymbol{\gamma} + \boldsymbol{\varepsilon}$$
(25)

$$\boldsymbol{\gamma} \sim MVN_L \left(\boldsymbol{0}, \boldsymbol{\lambda} \, \boldsymbol{\tau}^{-1} L^{-1} \boldsymbol{I}_L \right) \tag{26}$$

$$\boldsymbol{\varepsilon} \sim MVN_n\left(\boldsymbol{0}, \tau^{-1}\boldsymbol{I}_n\right) \tag{27}$$

where α is the coefficient for the intercept term; β is the fixed effect size of the explanatory pattern x; γ is a column vector of length L, which represents sizes of structural random effects of c_1, \dots, c_L on the response vector y; and the error term ε of length n represents residuals between data points and the mean of y under the model. Four parameters α , β , λ , and τ of this model will be estimated based on observations. Note that there is only a constant term $\mathbf{1}\alpha$ in the model for covariates as we do not take other variables into account at present.

Particularly, authors of GEMMA defined two components that constitute the total variance in random effects in an LMM. Specifically, $\sigma_e^2 = \tau^{-1}$ is the environmental variance component and $\sigma_g^2 = \lambda \sigma_e^2 = \lambda \tau^{-1}$ is the structural variance component (In the article about GEMMA, these components are called environmental effect and genetic effect, respectively [4]). Therefore, $\lambda = \sigma_g^2/\sigma_e^2$, which measures the relative contribution of population structure over environmental randomness to random effects. Accordingly, we can rewrite the assumed distributions of random effects in the LMM (Equation 25) using their equivalent forms:

$$\boldsymbol{\gamma} \sim MVN_L \left(\boldsymbol{0}, L^{-1} \sigma_g^2 \boldsymbol{I}_L \right)$$
(28)

$$\boldsymbol{\varepsilon} \sim MVN_n\left(\boldsymbol{0}, \boldsymbol{\sigma}_e^2 \boldsymbol{I}_n\right) \tag{29}$$

As already shown in Equation 17, there are only $r \le n-1$ orthogonal axes having projections diverging from the origin. Accordingly, the total effect of population structure reduces to the form

$$\boldsymbol{C}_{L}\boldsymbol{\gamma} = \sum_{j=1}^{r} \gamma_{j}\boldsymbol{c}_{j} + \sum_{j=L-r}^{L} \gamma_{j}\boldsymbol{0} = \boldsymbol{C}_{r}\boldsymbol{\gamma}_{r}$$
(30)

where the column vector $\boldsymbol{\gamma}_r$ is comprised of the leading *r* elements of $\boldsymbol{\gamma}$ without changing their order. Therefore, we can simplify the model defined in Equation 25 into an equivalent form:

$$\mathbf{y} = \mathbf{1}\boldsymbol{\alpha} + \mathbf{x}\boldsymbol{\beta} + \mathbf{C}_r \boldsymbol{\gamma}_r + \boldsymbol{\varepsilon}$$
(31)

$$\boldsymbol{\gamma}_{r} \sim MVN_{r}\left(\boldsymbol{0}, \lambda \, \tau^{-1} L^{-1} \boldsymbol{I}_{r}\right) \tag{32}$$

and the error term $\boldsymbol{\varepsilon}$ follows the same distribution as that in Equation 27.

3.1.9 Parameter estimation

We use GEMMA to estimate the four parameters in our LMM (Equation 25). In this section, we only outline key algebra for the estimates to demonstrate their forms specifically in our model. Readers may read the original article about GEMMA [4] and the software manual for more details. Herein, for allelic presence-absence status across n genomes, we use the notation \mathbf{x} to denote a column vector for an explanatory pattern and use \mathbf{y} to denote the other column vector for a response pattern. Both vectors have already been zero-centred by their arithmetic means. Notably, the designation of response and explanatory vectors is arbitrary, and in practice, patterns are iterated for both roles in the LMM to make all-to-all contrasts. Assuming $\mathbf{x} \neq \mathbf{y}$ and $n \gg 2$, we specify GEMMA to estimate the parameters using a residual maximum-likelihood (REML) approach and obtain unbiased parameter estimates of random effects. The target function for our model to optimise is

$$l_{r1}(\lambda, \tau; \mathbf{y}, \mathbf{x}, \mathbf{K}) = \frac{n-2}{2} \log \tau - \frac{n-2}{2} \log(2\pi) + \frac{1}{2} \log \det \left(\begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{1} & \mathbf{x} \end{bmatrix}^T \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{1} & \mathbf{x} \end{bmatrix} \right) - \frac{1}{2} \log \det \mathbf{H} - \frac{1}{2} \log \det \left(\begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{1} & \mathbf{x} \end{bmatrix}^T \mathbf{H}^{-1} \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{1} & \mathbf{x} \end{bmatrix} \right) - \frac{1}{2} \tau \mathbf{y}^T \mathbf{W}_x \mathbf{y}$$
(33)

where

$$\boldsymbol{H} = \lambda \boldsymbol{K} + \boldsymbol{I}_n \tag{34}$$

$$\boldsymbol{W}_{\boldsymbol{x}} = \boldsymbol{H}^{-1} - \boldsymbol{H}^{-1} \begin{bmatrix} \boldsymbol{1} & \boldsymbol{x} \end{bmatrix} \left(\begin{bmatrix} \boldsymbol{1} & \boldsymbol{x} \end{bmatrix}^{T} \boldsymbol{H}^{-1} \begin{bmatrix} \boldsymbol{1} & \boldsymbol{x} \end{bmatrix} \right)^{-1} \begin{bmatrix} \boldsymbol{1} & \boldsymbol{x} \end{bmatrix}^{T} \boldsymbol{H}^{-1}$$
(35)

The term W_x is an $n \times n$ matrix. Noticing x is a zero-centred vector, we deduced that the following term in Equation 33 involves the genetic variance of x:

$$\det\left(\begin{bmatrix}\mathbf{1} & \mathbf{x}\end{bmatrix}^{T}\begin{bmatrix}\mathbf{1} & \mathbf{x}\end{bmatrix}\right) = \begin{vmatrix} n & \sum_{i=1}^{n} x_{i} \\ \sum_{i=1}^{n} x_{i} & \sum_{i=1}^{n} x_{i}^{2} \end{vmatrix} = \begin{vmatrix} n & 0 \\ 0 & \sum_{i=1}^{n} x_{i}^{2} \end{vmatrix}$$

$$= n(n-1)\sum_{i=1}^{n} \frac{x_{i}^{2}}{n-1} = n(n-1)\operatorname{Var}(\mathbf{x})$$
(36)

Therefore, the target function (Equation 33) does not exist when x is a constant vector (namely, Var(x) = 0 when the explanatory allele is uniformly present or absent in all sampled genomes) because the function takes a logarithm of the determinant (Equation 36). This is a limitation of our LMMs: REML parameter estimates only exist when the explanatory allele has a frequency of neither zero nor one.

Provided existence of the target function, Zhou and Stephens point out that this function is maximised at the scalar [4]

$$\hat{\tau} = \frac{n-2}{\mathbf{y}^T \mathbf{W}_x \mathbf{y}} \tag{37}$$

assuming the parameter λ is known. This equation immediately indicates another limitation of our method: $\hat{\tau}$ does not exist when the response allele is absent across all genomes (that is, y = 0).

Putting Equations 37 and 36 back into Equation 33, we show the residual target function for REML estimates:

$$l_{r1}(\lambda; \mathbf{y}, \mathbf{x}, \mathbf{K}) = \frac{1}{2} \left[(n-2) \log \frac{n-2}{2\pi} + \log \frac{n(n-1)}{\det \mathbf{H}} - (n-2) \right] + \frac{1}{2} \left[\log \frac{\operatorname{Var}(\mathbf{x})}{\det \left(\begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{1} & \mathbf{x} \end{bmatrix}^T \mathbf{H}^{-1} \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{1} & \mathbf{x} \end{bmatrix} \right)} - (n-2) \log \left(\mathbf{y}^T \mathbf{W}_x \mathbf{y} \right) \right]$$
(38)

which consists of a constant term (between the first pair of square brackets) and a variant term (between the second pair of square brackets). Then we can determine the REML estimate of λ for the LMM (Equation 25) through

$$\hat{\lambda}_{r1} = \operatorname{argmax} l_{r1}(\lambda; \boldsymbol{y}, \boldsymbol{x}, \boldsymbol{K})$$
(39)

Next, GEMMA uses a generalised least-square (GLS) approach to estimate parameters of fixed effects in the LMM [11]. Following the algebra by authors of GEMMA, we have derived the following GLS estimator and variance of β given REML estimates of the two variance components (i.e., structural and environmental effects) explaining the response pattern **y** [4].

$$\hat{\boldsymbol{\beta}} = \left(\boldsymbol{x}^T \boldsymbol{W}_1 \boldsymbol{x}\right)^{-1} \boldsymbol{x}^T \boldsymbol{W}_1 \boldsymbol{y}$$
(40)

$$\operatorname{Var}(\hat{\boldsymbol{\beta}}) = \frac{1}{n-2} \cdot \frac{\boldsymbol{y}^T \boldsymbol{W}_x \boldsymbol{y}}{\boldsymbol{x}^T \boldsymbol{W}_1 \boldsymbol{x}}$$
(41)

where $\boldsymbol{W}_1 = \boldsymbol{H}^{-1} - \boldsymbol{H}^{-1} \mathbf{1} \left(\mathbf{1}^T \boldsymbol{H}^{-1} \mathbf{1} \right)^{-1} \mathbf{1}^T \boldsymbol{H}^{-1}$ and it is an $n \times n$ matrix.

3.1.10 Hypothesis tests for the fixed effect

The null hypothesis for our LMMs to be tested for is $\beta = 0$ and the alternative hypothesis is $\beta \neq 0$. Accordingly, the LMM defined by Equation 25 becomes $\mathbf{y} = \mathbf{1}\alpha + \mathbf{C}_L \boldsymbol{\gamma} + \boldsymbol{\varepsilon}$ under the null hypothesis.

Likelihood-ratio tests are invalid in our approach for comparing LMMs under the null and alternative hypotheses using logarithms of residual likelihood functions because these LMMs differ in fixed effects, that is, with or without the term $x\beta$ besides the constant fixed effect 1α . Instead, a Wald test is implemented in GEMMA to test for the null hypothesis. Specifically, the test statistic follows an F distribution when the null hypothesis is true and thereby a p-value is calculated [4]:

$$F = \frac{\hat{\beta}^2}{\operatorname{Var}(\hat{\beta})} \sim F(1, n-2) \tag{42}$$

3.2 Assessment of structural random effects

This step determines whether sample projections on an axis can explain the presenceabsence of an allele as a structural random effect under a given significance level (namely, a maximum type-1 error rate or false-positive rate). Based on the assumption about structural random effects for the LMM defined by Equation 25, the effects follow a multivariate normal distribution (Equation 26). However, being different to the fixed effects $\mathbf{1}\alpha + \mathbf{x}\beta$, explicit element values in the vector $\boldsymbol{\gamma} = [\gamma_1, \dots, \gamma_n, \dots, \gamma_L]^T$ are unobservable in an LMM, although we can estimate their related parameters λ and τ . Earle, Wu, et al. show that we can use the posterior distribution of $\boldsymbol{\gamma}$ under the null LMM to test for the hypothesis that γ_i ($1 \le i \le L$) equals zero [6]. In this section, we revise their algebra for higher stringency and accuracy.

3.2.1 Posterior distribution of structural random effects

From the null LMM,

$$\mathbf{y} = \mathbf{1}\boldsymbol{\alpha} + \boldsymbol{C}_L \boldsymbol{\gamma} + \boldsymbol{\varepsilon} \tag{43}$$

we can derive an equivalent form

$$\mathbf{y} - \mathbf{1}\boldsymbol{\alpha} = \boldsymbol{C}_L \boldsymbol{\gamma} + \boldsymbol{\varepsilon} \tag{44}$$

where $\boldsymbol{\gamma} \sim MVN_L(\mathbf{0}, \lambda \tau^{-1}L^{-1}\boldsymbol{I}_L)$ and $\boldsymbol{\varepsilon} \sim MVN_n(\mathbf{0}, \tau^{-1}\boldsymbol{I}_n)$. Let $\boldsymbol{z} = \boldsymbol{y} - \boldsymbol{1}\alpha$, we have an ordinary model of multiple regression:

$$\boldsymbol{z} = \boldsymbol{C}_L \boldsymbol{\gamma} + \boldsymbol{\varepsilon} \tag{45}$$

Given REML estimates of λ and τ under the null model (Equation 43), prior distributions of γ and $\boldsymbol{\varepsilon}$ are determined:

$$\boldsymbol{\gamma} \sim MVN_L \left(\boldsymbol{0}, \hat{\boldsymbol{\lambda}} \, \hat{\boldsymbol{\tau}}^{-1} L^{-1} \boldsymbol{I}_L \right) \tag{46}$$

$$\boldsymbol{\varepsilon} \sim MVN_n\left(\boldsymbol{0}, \hat{\boldsymbol{\tau}}^{-1}\boldsymbol{I}_n\right) \tag{47}$$

Supposing that the true variance-covariance matrix of the residual error $\boldsymbol{\varepsilon}$ is known and it equals $\hat{\tau}^{-1}\boldsymbol{I}_n$, we can deduce that the posterior distribution of $\boldsymbol{\gamma}$ is a multivariate normal distribution with a mean vector $\boldsymbol{\mu}$ and a covariance matrix $\boldsymbol{\Sigma}$ determined by the following procedure (cf. Theorem 11.45, Equations 11.60 and 11.61 on page 327 of Kendall's book [12], when $\sigma^2 = \tau^{-1}$ for both equations).

Let $\boldsymbol{w} = \hat{\lambda} \hat{\tau}^{-1} L^{-1} \boldsymbol{I}_L$. Note that $\boldsymbol{I}_L^{-1} = \boldsymbol{I}_L$, then $\boldsymbol{w}^{-1} = \hat{\lambda}^{-1} \hat{\tau} L \boldsymbol{I}_L$. According to Kendall's Equation 11.60 [12], we derived that

$$\boldsymbol{\mu} = E(\boldsymbol{\gamma}|\boldsymbol{z}) = \left(\boldsymbol{w}^{-1} + \hat{\tau}\boldsymbol{C}_{L}^{T}\boldsymbol{C}_{L}\right)^{-1}\left(\boldsymbol{w}^{-1}\cdot\boldsymbol{0} + \hat{\tau}\boldsymbol{C}_{L}^{T}\boldsymbol{z}\right) = \hat{\tau}\left(\boldsymbol{w}^{-1} + \hat{\tau}\boldsymbol{C}_{L}^{T}\boldsymbol{C}_{L}\right)^{-1}\boldsymbol{C}_{L}^{T}\boldsymbol{z}$$

$$= \left(L\hat{\lambda}^{-1}\boldsymbol{I}_{L} + \boldsymbol{C}_{L}^{T}\boldsymbol{C}_{L}\right)^{-1}\boldsymbol{C}_{L}^{T}(\boldsymbol{y} - \boldsymbol{1}\boldsymbol{\alpha})$$

$$= \left(L\hat{\lambda}^{-1}\boldsymbol{I}_{L} + \boldsymbol{C}_{L}^{T}\boldsymbol{C}_{L}\right)^{-1}\boldsymbol{C}_{L}^{T}\boldsymbol{y} - \boldsymbol{\alpha}\left(L\hat{\lambda}^{-1}\boldsymbol{I}_{L} + \boldsymbol{C}_{L}^{T}\boldsymbol{C}_{L}\right)^{-1}\boldsymbol{C}_{L}^{T}\boldsymbol{1}$$
(48)

On one hand, using rotation transformation $C_L = SQ$ in Section 3.1.7, we have

$$\boldsymbol{C}_{L}^{T}\boldsymbol{1} = (\boldsymbol{S}\boldsymbol{Q})^{T}\boldsymbol{1} = \boldsymbol{Q}^{T}\boldsymbol{S}^{T}\boldsymbol{1}$$

$$\tag{49}$$

Because column sums of the $n \times L$ centred genotype matrix **S** are zeros, we have

$$\mathbf{S}^{T}\mathbf{1} = \begin{bmatrix} s_{.1} \\ \vdots \\ s_{.L} \end{bmatrix} = \mathbf{0}_{L \times 1}$$
(50)

where $s_{.j} = \sum_{i=1}^{n} s_{ij}$, $1 \le j \le L$, the sum of elements in the *j*-th column of **S**. Therefore, the second term of Equation 48 is cancelled and we have the posterior mean

$$\boldsymbol{\mu} = \left(\boldsymbol{C}_{L}^{T}\boldsymbol{C}_{L} + L\hat{\boldsymbol{\lambda}}^{-1}\boldsymbol{I}_{L}\right)^{-1}\boldsymbol{C}_{L}^{T}\boldsymbol{y}$$
(51)

which equals the ridge estimator of the coefficient vector $\boldsymbol{\eta}$ in linear model

$$\mathbf{y} = \mathbf{C}_L \boldsymbol{\eta} + \boldsymbol{e}$$
 where $\boldsymbol{e} \sim MVN_n \left(\mathbf{0}, \sigma^2 \boldsymbol{I}_n \right)$ (52)

given the ridge parameter $k = L/\hat{\lambda}$. Consequently, the intercept term 1α in our LMM does not affect the posterior mean $\boldsymbol{\mu} = E(\boldsymbol{\gamma}|\boldsymbol{z})$ at all, which is reasonable as it only reveals the relative scale of observations.

On the other hand, knowing $C_L = P\Sigma$, $P^T P = I_n$, and the diagonal matrix $\Sigma^T = \Sigma$, we show

$$C_{L}^{T}C_{L} = (P\Sigma)^{T} P\Sigma = \Sigma^{T} P^{T} P\Sigma = \Sigma^{T} \Sigma$$

$$= \begin{bmatrix} D_{r \times r} & O_{r \times (n-r)} \\ O_{(L-r) \times r} & O_{(L-r) \times (n-r)} \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} D_{r \times r} & O_{r \times (L-r)} \\ O_{(n-r) \times r} & O_{(n-r) \times (L-r)} \end{bmatrix}$$

$$= \begin{bmatrix} D_{r \times r}^{2} & O_{r \times (L-r)} \\ O_{(L-r) \times r} & O_{(L-r) \times (L-r)} \end{bmatrix}_{L \times L} = \operatorname{diag} (\lambda_{1}, \cdots, \lambda_{r}, 0, \cdots, 0)$$
(53)

Let $\mathbf{\Lambda}_{L\times L}$ be the diagonal matrix diag $(\lambda_1, \dots, \lambda_r, 0, \dots, 0)$ of eigenvalues, we can simplify Formula 51 as follows:

$$\boldsymbol{\mu} = \left(L\hat{\lambda}^{-1}\boldsymbol{I}_{L} + \boldsymbol{C}_{L}^{T}\boldsymbol{C}_{L}\right)^{-1}\boldsymbol{C}_{L}^{T}\boldsymbol{y}$$

$$= \left(L\hat{\lambda}^{-1}\boldsymbol{I}_{L} + \boldsymbol{\Lambda}\right)^{-1}\boldsymbol{C}_{L}^{T}\boldsymbol{y}$$

$$= \operatorname{diag}\left[\left(L\hat{\lambda}^{-1} + \lambda_{1}\right)^{-1}, \cdots, \left(L\hat{\lambda}^{-1} + \lambda_{r}\right)^{-1}, 0, \cdots, 0\right]\boldsymbol{C}_{L}^{T}\boldsymbol{y}$$

$$= \begin{bmatrix}\left(L\hat{\lambda}^{-1} + \lambda_{1}\right)^{-1}\boldsymbol{c}_{1}^{T}\\\vdots\\\left(L\hat{\lambda}^{-1} + \lambda_{r}\right)^{-1}\boldsymbol{c}_{r}^{T}\\0\\\vdots\\0\end{bmatrix}\boldsymbol{y}$$
(54)

Hence, the *i*-th ($i = 1, \dots, r$) element of $\boldsymbol{\mu}$ is

$$\boldsymbol{\mu}_{i} = \left(L\hat{\lambda}^{-1} + \lambda_{i}\right)^{-1} \boldsymbol{c}_{i}^{T} \boldsymbol{y} = \left(L\hat{\lambda}^{-1} + \lambda_{i}\right)^{-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n} c_{ji} y_{j}, 1 \leq i \leq r$$
(55)

which is the *i*-th posterior mean of γ_i given z (or y) and C_L . This equation shows that we can use C_r instead of C_L to capture all genetic variation underlying population structure.

Similarly, we can deduce the variance-covariance matrix of $\gamma | z$ through Kendall's Equation 11.61 [12].

$$\boldsymbol{\Delta} = \operatorname{Cov}(\boldsymbol{\gamma}|\boldsymbol{z}) = \left(\boldsymbol{w}^{-1} + \hat{\boldsymbol{\tau}}\boldsymbol{C}_{L}^{T}\boldsymbol{C}_{L}\right)^{-1} = \hat{\boldsymbol{\tau}}^{-1}\left(L\hat{\boldsymbol{\lambda}}^{-1}\boldsymbol{I}_{L} + \boldsymbol{C}_{L}^{T}\boldsymbol{C}_{L}\right)^{-1}$$
(56)

Using Equation 53, we show that Δ is an $L \times L$ diagonal matrix:

$$\boldsymbol{\Delta} = \hat{\tau}^{-1} \left(L \hat{\lambda}^{-1} \boldsymbol{I}_{L} + \boldsymbol{C}_{L}^{T} \boldsymbol{C}_{L} \right)^{-1} = \hat{\tau}^{-1} \left(L \hat{\lambda}^{-1} \boldsymbol{I}_{L} + \boldsymbol{\Lambda} \right)^{-1}$$

$$= \hat{\tau}^{-1} \operatorname{diag} \left[\left(L \hat{\lambda}^{-1} + \lambda_{1} \right), \cdots, \left(L \hat{\lambda}^{-1} + \lambda_{r} \right), \left(L \hat{\lambda}^{-1} + 0 \right), \cdots, \left(L \hat{\lambda}^{-1} + 0 \right) \right]^{-1}$$

$$= \hat{\tau}^{-1} \operatorname{diag} \left[\left(L \hat{\lambda}^{-1} + \lambda_{1} \right)^{-1}, \cdots, \left(L \hat{\lambda}^{-1} + \lambda_{r} \right)^{-1}, \hat{\lambda} / L, \cdots, \hat{\lambda} / L \right]$$
(57)

This is what we can expect from genome projections, which are mutually independent: sizes of their effects on the response y are independent as well. Putting Equations 51 and 56 together, we have the posterior distribution of γ based on the full form of SVD:

$$\boldsymbol{\gamma} | \boldsymbol{z} = \boldsymbol{\gamma} | \boldsymbol{y} \sim MVN_n(\boldsymbol{\mu}, \boldsymbol{\Delta})$$

where $\boldsymbol{\mu} = \left(\boldsymbol{C}_L^T \boldsymbol{C}_L + L\hat{\lambda}^{-1} \boldsymbol{I}_L \right)^{-1} \boldsymbol{C}_L^T \boldsymbol{y}$
and $\boldsymbol{\Delta} = \hat{\tau}^{-1} \left(L\hat{\lambda}^{-1} \boldsymbol{I}_L + \boldsymbol{C}_L^T \boldsymbol{C}_L \right)^{-1}$ (58)

3.2.2 Bayesian chi-square tests of structural random effects

Let $\varphi_i = \gamma_i | \mathbf{y}$ for Equation 58, where $i = 1, \dots, L$, we are interested in testing for the null hypothesis $H_0: \varphi_i = 0$ versus an alternative hypothesis $H_1: \varphi_i \neq 0$. We say genome projections along the *i*-th PC contributes to the presence-absence status in \mathbf{y} if H_0 is rejected under a given significance level.

Since φ_i is a member variable participating in the multivariate normal distribution (Equation 58), it follows a univariate normal distribution:

$$\gamma_i | \mathbf{y} = \varphi_i \sim \mathcal{N}\left(\mu_i, \Delta_{ii}\right) \tag{59}$$

where Δ_{ii} is the *i*-th diagonal element of the matrix Σ . Therefore, we can construct a random variable (represented by w_i) that follows a chi-square distribution of one degree of freedom from the distribution of φ_i using the connection between a normal distribution and a chi-square distribution:

$$w_i = \left(\frac{\varphi_i - \mu_i}{\sqrt{\Delta_{ii}}}\right)^2 = \frac{(\varphi_i - \mu_i)^2}{\Delta_{ii}} \sim \chi^2(1)$$
(60)

Hence the null hypothesis for the posterior distribution (Equation 58), $\gamma_i | \mathbf{y} = \boldsymbol{\varphi}_i = 0$, is equivalently converted into an observation of the chi-square distribution:

$$w_i|_{\varphi_i=0} = \frac{(0-\mu_i)^2}{\Delta_{ii}} = \frac{\mu_i^2}{\Delta_{ii}}$$
 (61)

This is the statistic drawn from the population of $\chi^2(1)$ to test for the null hypothesis $\varphi_i = 0$ versus the alternative hypothesis $\varphi_i \neq 0$, and it relies on parameter estimates $\hat{\lambda}$ and $\hat{\tau}$ of the null LMM as well as genome projections. Assuming a confidence level of p_0 ($0 < p_0 < 1$), we can consider the event of observing $w_i|_{\varphi_i=0} \ge \mu_i^2/\Delta_{ii}$ "impossible" and thereby reject the null hypothesis if the upper-tail probability $P(w_i|_{\varphi_i=0} \ge \mu_i^2/\Delta_{ii}) \le p_0$ based on the distribution $\chi^2(1)$ — in other words, it is unlikely the null distribution of w_i holds when this probability is sufficiently small. By convention, the threshold p_0 for confidence may be set to 0.05, 0.01, and so forth.

Furthermore, it is worth noting that this hypothesis test determines whether genome projections along a specific PC explain allelic presence-absence status in the response vector y. Hence it may report a PC that does not significantly contribute to the presence of alleles but their absence. In other words, a PC may show either a significant positive association or a negative association with y.

3.3 Scoring evidence of physical linkage

In this section, we describe a scoring scheme for enriching allele pairs that are physically linked in HGT. The identification of co-localised alleles is a particular utility of the association result. The final score applies to each pair of explanatory allele and response allele. In other words, it weights each directed edge of an association network of alleles. We have developed this scheme via taking into account the direction of each significant association and characteristics in measurements of allelic physical distances (APDs). As such, the overall score (denoted by *s* hereafter) is comprised of two components, which are explained in details in the following contents.

3.3.1 Score for association status

For each pair of explanatory and response alleles, the first component of the overall score is a score for association status in terms of its orientation (positive or negative) and statistical significance. Let s_a denote an association score, then s_a is determined using a decision tree shown in Figure s1.

Specifically, the association score s_a is a discrete variable taking values from -1 (evidence against physical linkage), 0 (insufficient evidence for a decision), and 1 (evidence supporting physical linkage). The tree is designed under the consideration that a significant positive association is strong evidence for the co-localisation of alleles, and a significant negative association is evidence against the presence of allelic co-localisation. Nonetheless, since the association status tested for using LMMs are directed and confounded by the contrast of allele distributions (e.g., how many overlaps and mismatches in distributions of each pair of alleles), there may be significant associations where $\beta < 0$ but alleles are actually co-localised in some genomes. These cases can be considered as co-localisation signals that are too weak to be detected due to a high level of noise caused by co-occurrence of the same alleles which are however physically unlinked in the same collection of bacterial genomes.

3.3.2 Score for allelic physical distances

Since physical distances between acquired alleles are unlikely to conserve across bacterial linages when individual alleles are randomly acquired and inserted into bacterial genomes, consistency in the physical distances found in phylogenetically distant bacterial genomes provides us with the second layer of evidence for the inference of physical linkage. In addition, the network of positive associations between alleles may contain edges resulted from transfer dependency (where the horizontal transfer of one MGE relies on the presence of another) or particular combinations of alleles whose distribution contrast leads to a positive association only computationally. Taken together, we leverage physical distances (physical evidence) to filter positive associations (statistical evidence) for those supporting the existence of physical linkage.

Nonetheless, we cannot directly incorporate the distances into an LMM as a covariate by far, because it is highly correlated with presence-absence of the explanatory allele and is confounded by the same population structure. For instance, it is evident that the distance is unmeasurable when the explanatory allele is absent (the same to the response allele as well), and the consistency in distances may be resulted from a phenomenon called identity by descent (IBD), where the same genomic structure is passed down to descendants through clonal reproduction. In evolution, the IBD gets lost or weaken in some bacteria of the same clade because of gene-loss events, insertion of MGEs (A common example is the disruption of genomic structures by the acquisition of insertion sequences), genomic rearrangement, and so forth, causing a spurious HGcoT signal in the distribution of allelic co-occurrence events. Therefore, we designed a decision tree to score APD consistency (Figure s2) while taking into account the probability of observing consistent APDs due to common ancestry. This method enables us to integrate the association score and make a concise scoring scheme. Assuming *m* reliable physical distances d_1, \dots, d_m are measured between alleles X and Y in *m* genomes and $m \ge 2$, the decision tree works as follows.

- 1. Define in-group distance measurements as those within range $Q1 1.5IQR \le d_i \le Q3 + 1.5IQR$ ($1 \le i \le m$), where Q1 and Q3 denote the first and third quantiles (namely, the 25th and 75th percentiles) of all the distances, respectively, and IQR is an abbreviation of the interquartile range (equalling Q3 Q1) of distances. Outlier distance measurements are determined accordingly. This grouping of distances enables us to evade erroneous decisions driven by a few outlier distances that may be caused by poor assembly quality, recombination events, etc.
- Assuming n (n ≤ m) in-group physical distances were measured between alleles X and Y in n bacterial genomes and one distance measurement per genome, let d_(i) (1 ≤ i ≤ n) represent the distance measurement in the *i*-th genome and define the range of in-group distances as r_{in} = max{d_(i)} -min{d_(i)}. Herein, we assume n ≥ 2 for the rest of steps for simplicity of our description.
- 3. The in-group distances are considered consistent if their range $r_{in} \leq \varepsilon$ where ε (bp) is a user-specified upper bound for distance ranges. We suggest users to set ε as twice the error tolerance for distance measurements to simplify explanations of results, because this is the expected maximum difference between accurate distance measurements under this tolerance setting when true distances are the same in all of *n* genomes.
- 4. To determine whether consistent in-group distances are caused by IBD, we obtain a binary vector as a "trait" for all genomes where one is assigned to the *n* genomes and zero to the others to denote the presence and absence of in-group distances, respectively. Then we reconstruct the presence-absence state of the same/similar distance in the most-recent common ancestor of all the *n* genomes using function *ace* in R package ape [13] under an all-rates-equal model for state transitions of a discrete trait in these genomes. Based on the outcome of this function, we consider presence of consistent distances as a result of IBD if the empirical Bayesian posterior probability of the ancestral state of "presence" exceeds a pre-defined threshold p_0 (GeneMates uses 0.9 by default for this parameter). The consistency score *c* is determined accordingly.
- 5. The same ancestral state reconstruction also applies to inconsistent in-group distances. It can be understood as an evaluation of the tendency in n genomes to show consistent physical distances as a result of clonal reproduction. Notably, when the tendency is strong, we consider inconsistency in the distances as evidence against physical linkage (assigning -1 to c), whereas it is unsurprised to see inconsistent distances when the tendency is weak or absent (assigning zero to c).

For this scoring procedure, a user may provide a maximum-likelihood (ML) phylogenetic tree estimated using an external program as an input. GeneMates generates a neighbour-joining tree from Euclidean distances between genome projections for ancestral state reconstruction when the external tree is not provided. Compared to the ML tree, the projection-based neighbour-joining tree does not depend on any model or assumption, however, this tree may be less accurate than the ML tree as it is built on less SNPs (only biallelic cgSNPs) than the ML tree (usually constructed from SNP sites detected in 99% of bacterial genomes).

3.3.3 Overall score

The final score for physical linkage between a specific pair of alleles is an integration of both the association score s_a and the consistency score c. In addition, we need to consider the measurability of APDs in genomes where both alleles are co-occurring because it is positively associated with representability of the consistency score, frequency of allelic co-localisation, and quality of genome assemblies. Specifically, we define the in-group measurability (m_{in}) as the percentage of genomes having in-group APDs measured between two given alleles in genome assemblies over all genomes in which these two alleles are co-occurring. Therefore, we know $0 \le m_{in} \le 1$. Then the overall linkage score is defined as

$$s = s_a + m_{in}c \tag{62}$$

where s_a is the association component of *s* and $m_{in}c$ is the distance component. Note that the measurability can be considered as a weight for consistency score *c*. In particular, we define a distance score $s_d = m_{in}c$ to simplify Equation 62. Evidently, *s* is a continuous variable and $-2 \le s \le 2$.

Assuming perfect measurability (namely, $m_{in} = 1$), since each of s_a and c has three levels (-1, 0, 1), the overall score s has five levels (Table s1), which can be interpreted as follows:

- 2: physical linkage is well supported by both association analysis and APDs;
- 1: physical linkage is supported by either association analysis or APDs;
- 0: we cannot determine whether a pair of alleles are physically linked or not;
- -1: there is weak evidence opposing the presence of physical linkage;
- -2: there is strong evidence against the presence of physical linkage.

An advantage in using the product of distance measurability and the distance score is that it does not apply a hard and often arbitrary cut-off to the measurability for filtering edges in the association network. As a result, overall scores retain more information for investigation than scores filtered for a certain measurability level do. In practice, overall scores can be mapped to a colour gradient of edges in an association network in order to identify clusters of co-localised alleles at different levels of measurability. Some studies may use 0.5 as a cut-off for m_{in} to filter out scores that are not sufficiently representative.

3.4 Further discussions

In this section, we show connections between our association analysis and other methods. Furthermore, we explain the fixed effect of the explanatory variable. Finally, we discuss several limitations of our approach to detection of HGcoT.

3.4.1 Model equivalence

Here, we demonstrate equivalence of our LMM to LMMs implemented in GEMMA, BugWAS, and EMMA [14] using affine transformations.

Equivalence to the standard LMM of GEMMA Let $u = C_L \gamma$ denote the term of random structural effect, we used an affine transformation of multivariate normal distributions to prove the equivalence between our model (Equation 25) and the standard LMM implemented in GEMMA [4]. Specifically, given $u = C_L \gamma$, Equation 26 and $C_L = SQ = P\Sigma$, the affine transformation shows

$$\boldsymbol{u} \sim MVN_n \left[\boldsymbol{0}, \boldsymbol{C}_L \left(\lambda \tau^{-1} L^{-1} \boldsymbol{I}_L \right) \boldsymbol{C}_L^T \right]$$
(63)

and

$$\boldsymbol{C}_{L}\left(\lambda\tau^{-1}L^{-1}\boldsymbol{I}_{L}\right)\boldsymbol{C}_{L}^{T} = \lambda\tau^{-1}\frac{\boldsymbol{C}_{L}\boldsymbol{C}_{L}^{T}}{L} = \lambda\tau^{-1}\frac{(\boldsymbol{P}\boldsymbol{\Sigma})(\boldsymbol{S}\boldsymbol{Q})^{T}}{L}$$
$$= \lambda\tau^{-1}\frac{(\boldsymbol{P}\boldsymbol{\Sigma}\boldsymbol{Q}^{T})\boldsymbol{S}^{T}}{L} = \lambda\tau^{-1}\frac{\boldsymbol{S}\boldsymbol{S}^{T}}{L} = \lambda\tau^{-1}\boldsymbol{K}$$
(64)

This equivalence also applies to the model defined by Equation 31, which follows the reduced form of SVD. Specifically, applying an affine transformation to the $n \times 1$ vector $\boldsymbol{u} = \boldsymbol{C}_r \boldsymbol{\gamma}_r$, we can restore the same variance-covariance matrix of the multivariate normal distribution in the GEMMA LMM.

$$\boldsymbol{C}_{r}\left(\lambda\tau^{-1}L^{-1}\boldsymbol{I}_{r}\right)\boldsymbol{C}_{r}^{T} = \lambda\tau^{-1}\frac{\boldsymbol{C}_{r}\boldsymbol{C}_{r}^{T}}{L} = \lambda\tau^{-1}\frac{(\boldsymbol{U}\boldsymbol{D})(\boldsymbol{S}\boldsymbol{V})^{T}}{L}$$
$$= \lambda\tau^{-1}\frac{(\boldsymbol{U}\boldsymbol{D}\boldsymbol{V}^{T})\boldsymbol{S}^{T}}{L} = \lambda\tau^{-1}\frac{\boldsymbol{S}\boldsymbol{S}^{T}}{L} = \lambda\tau^{-1}\boldsymbol{K}$$
(65)

Taken together, our LMM is equivalent to the LMM of GEMMA:

$$\mathbf{y} = \mathbf{1}\alpha + \mathbf{x}\beta + \mathbf{C}_L \mathbf{\gamma} + \mathbf{\varepsilon} = \mathbf{1}\alpha + \mathbf{x}\beta + \mathbf{u} + \mathbf{\varepsilon}$$
(66)

$$\boldsymbol{u} \sim MVN_n\left(\boldsymbol{0}, \lambda \, \tau^{-1} \boldsymbol{K}\right) \tag{67}$$

$$\boldsymbol{\varepsilon} \sim MVN_n\left(\boldsymbol{0}, \tau^{-1}\boldsymbol{I}_n\right) \tag{68}$$

Hypotheses about β to be tested for in association analysis are the same between these two models.

Equivalence to the LMM of BugWAS Our model is also equivalent to the LMM used by package BugWAS, which defines the LMM as follows:

$$\mathbf{y} = \mathbf{1}\alpha + \mathbf{x}\beta + \mathbf{S}\mathbf{\delta} + \mathbf{\varepsilon} \tag{69}$$

$$\boldsymbol{\delta} \sim MVN_L\left(\boldsymbol{0}, \boldsymbol{\lambda}' \boldsymbol{\tau}^{-1} \boldsymbol{I}_L\right) \tag{70}$$

$$\boldsymbol{\varepsilon} \sim MVN_n\left(\boldsymbol{0}, \boldsymbol{\tau}^{-1}\boldsymbol{I}_n\right) \tag{71}$$

Here, the $L \times 1$ vector $\boldsymbol{\delta}$ represents additive background effects of cgSNPs. Let $\boldsymbol{u}' = \boldsymbol{S}\boldsymbol{\delta}$, using an affine transformation of Equation 70, we show

$$\boldsymbol{u}' \sim MVN_n \left[\boldsymbol{0}, \boldsymbol{S} \left(\boldsymbol{\lambda}' \boldsymbol{\tau}^{-1} \boldsymbol{I}_L \right) \boldsymbol{S}^T \right]$$
(72)

and we can calculate that

$$\boldsymbol{S}\left(\boldsymbol{\lambda}'\boldsymbol{\tau}^{-1}\boldsymbol{I}_{L}\right)\boldsymbol{S}^{T} = \boldsymbol{\lambda}'\boldsymbol{\tau}^{-1}L\frac{\boldsymbol{S}\boldsymbol{S}^{T}}{L} = L\boldsymbol{\lambda}'\boldsymbol{\tau}^{-1}\boldsymbol{K}$$
(73)

Particularly, when $\lambda' = \lambda/L$, **u**' follows the same distribution of **u** in our model.

$$\boldsymbol{u}' \sim MVN_n\left(\boldsymbol{0}, \lambda \, \tau^{-1}\boldsymbol{K}\right) \tag{74}$$

Therefore, the LMM of BugWAS becomes an equivalent form of our model when $\lambda' = \lambda/L$:

$$\mathbf{y} = \mathbf{1}\alpha + \mathbf{x}\beta + \mathbf{S}\mathbf{\delta} + \mathbf{\varepsilon} = \mathbf{1}\alpha + \mathbf{x}\beta + \mathbf{u}' + \mathbf{\varepsilon}$$
(75)

where $\boldsymbol{u}' \sim MVN_n(\boldsymbol{0}, \lambda \tau^{-1}\boldsymbol{K})$. This equivalence justifies the use of GEMMA for parameter estimation for the LMM of BugWAS, which tests for the association between a

phenotype and the genotype of an explanatory locus.

Equivalence between LMMs of GEMMA and EMMA First, we demonstrate the equivalence between two forms of LMMs that are fitted using GEMMA. The article about GEMMA [4] offers an equivalent form of Equation 66:

$$\mathbf{y} = \mathbf{1}\alpha + \mathbf{x}\beta + \mathbf{Z}\mathbf{u}_m + \boldsymbol{\varepsilon}$$
$$\mathbf{u}_m \sim MVN_n \left(\mathbf{0}, \lambda \, \tau^{-1} \mathbf{K}_m\right)$$
$$\boldsymbol{\varepsilon} \sim MVN_n \left(\mathbf{0}, \tau^{-1} \mathbf{I}_n\right)$$
(76)

where Z is an $n \times m$ incidence matrix showing the membership of n individuals in m lineages/groups, and K_m is an $m \times m$ relatedness matrix between the lineages. In the simplest scenario of GWAS, Z can be an $n \times n$ identity matrix. According to supplementary materials of the GEMMA article, there are two matrices playing an important role in parameter estimation:

$$\boldsymbol{G} = \boldsymbol{Z}\boldsymbol{K}_m\boldsymbol{Z}^T \tag{77}$$

$$\boldsymbol{H} = \boldsymbol{\lambda}\boldsymbol{G} + \boldsymbol{I}_n \tag{78}$$

Using an affine transformation and defining $\boldsymbol{u} = \boldsymbol{Z}\boldsymbol{u}_m$ and $\boldsymbol{K} = \boldsymbol{Z}\boldsymbol{K}_m\boldsymbol{Z}^T$, the linear combination of elements in \boldsymbol{u}_m follows a multivariate normal distribution:

$$\boldsymbol{u} = \boldsymbol{Z}\boldsymbol{u}_m \sim MVN_n \left[\boldsymbol{0}, \boldsymbol{Z} \left(\lambda \, \tau^{-1} \boldsymbol{K}_m, \right) \boldsymbol{Z}^T \right]$$
(79)

$$\boldsymbol{Z}\left(\boldsymbol{\lambda}\boldsymbol{\tau}^{-1}\boldsymbol{K}_{m}\right)\boldsymbol{Z}^{T}=\boldsymbol{\lambda}\boldsymbol{\tau}^{-1}\left(\boldsymbol{Z}\boldsymbol{K}_{m}\boldsymbol{Z}^{T}\right)=\boldsymbol{\lambda}\boldsymbol{\tau}^{-1}\boldsymbol{K}$$
(80)

By definition, the $n \times n$ matrix $\mathbf{K} = \mathbf{Z}\mathbf{K}_m\mathbf{Z}^T$ describes the relatedness between these *n* individuals. Substituting $\mathbf{Z}\mathbf{u}_m$ with \mathbf{u} in Equation 76, we obtain Equation 66:

$$y = 1\alpha + x\beta + u + \varepsilon$$

where $\boldsymbol{u} \sim MVN_n(\boldsymbol{0}, \lambda \tau^{-1}\boldsymbol{K})$ and $\boldsymbol{K} = \boldsymbol{Z}\boldsymbol{K}_m\boldsymbol{Z}^T$. Hence $\boldsymbol{G} = \boldsymbol{Z}\boldsymbol{K}_m\boldsymbol{Z}^T = \boldsymbol{K}$ and $\boldsymbol{H} = \lambda \boldsymbol{K} + \boldsymbol{I}_n$. Particularly, $\boldsymbol{K}_m = \boldsymbol{K}$ and both models defined by Equations 66 and 76 become the same when m = n and $\boldsymbol{Z} = \boldsymbol{I}_n$. Nonetheless, we usually take the form of Equation 66 for LMMs in practice, because \boldsymbol{K} can be easily calculated using formula $\boldsymbol{K} = (\boldsymbol{S}\boldsymbol{S}^T)/L$ while the calculation of \boldsymbol{K}_m may be difficult.

On the other hand, we know that GEMMA is an improvement of EMMA. Specifically, EMMA works on the LMM [14]:

$$\mathbf{y} = \mathbf{X}\boldsymbol{\beta} + \mathbf{Z}\boldsymbol{g} + \boldsymbol{\varepsilon} \tag{81}$$

$$\boldsymbol{g} \sim MVN_n\left(\boldsymbol{0}, \boldsymbol{\sigma}_g^2 \boldsymbol{K}_m\right) \tag{82}$$

$$\boldsymbol{\varepsilon} \sim MVN_n\left(\boldsymbol{0}, \boldsymbol{\sigma}_e^2 \boldsymbol{I}_n\right) \tag{83}$$

where $X\beta$ includes an intercept and possible covariates. Herein we are interested in σ_g^2 and σ_e^2 , which are known as variance components of random effects g and residuals ε , respectively. According to the GEMMA article, λ is defined as the ratio of σ_g^2 over σ_e^2 (cf. Section 3.1.8):

$$\lambda = \frac{\sigma_g^2}{\sigma_e^2} \tag{84}$$

Hence $\sigma_g^2 = \lambda \sigma_e^2$. Following the EMMA article [14] and Equation 80, we have:

$$\boldsymbol{H}' = \boldsymbol{Z}\boldsymbol{K}_{m}\boldsymbol{Z}^{T} + \lambda^{-1}\boldsymbol{I}_{n} = \boldsymbol{K} + \lambda^{-1}\boldsymbol{I}_{n} = \lambda^{-1}\left(\lambda\boldsymbol{K} + \boldsymbol{I}_{n}\right) = \lambda^{-1}\boldsymbol{H}$$
(85)

Therefore, $H'^{-1} = \lambda H^{-1}$. Furthermore, we can derive the full log-likelihood function described by authors of EMMA for their model (Equation 81) as follows:

$$l_{F}(\mathbf{y};\boldsymbol{\beta},\sigma_{g},\lambda) = -\frac{1}{2} \left[n \log \left(2\pi\sigma_{g}^{2} \right) + \log \det \mathbf{H}' + \frac{1}{\sigma_{g}^{2}} \left(\mathbf{y} - \mathbf{X}\boldsymbol{\beta} \right)^{T} \left(\mathbf{H}' \right)^{-1} \left(\mathbf{y} - \mathbf{X}\boldsymbol{\beta} \right) \right]$$

$$= -\frac{1}{2} \left[n \log \left(2\pi \right) + n \log \left(\lambda \sigma_{e}^{2} \right) + \log \det \left(\lambda^{-1} \mathbf{H} \right) + \frac{1}{\lambda \sigma_{e}^{2}} \left(\mathbf{y} - \mathbf{X}\boldsymbol{\beta} \right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{-1} \mathbf{H} \right)^{-1} \left(\mathbf{y} - \mathbf{X}\boldsymbol{\beta} \right) \right]$$

$$= -\frac{1}{2} \left[n \log \left(2\pi \right) + n \log \lambda + n \log \sigma_{e}^{2} + \log \left(\lambda^{-n} \det \mathbf{H} \right) + \sigma_{e}^{-2} \left(\mathbf{y} - \mathbf{X}\boldsymbol{\beta} \right)^{T} \mathbf{H}^{-1} \left(\mathbf{y} - \mathbf{X}\boldsymbol{\beta} \right) \right]$$

$$= -\frac{1}{2} \left[n \log \left(2\pi \right) + n \log \lambda + n \log \sigma_{e}^{2} - n \log \lambda + \log \det \mathbf{H} + \sigma_{e}^{-2} \left(\mathbf{y} - \mathbf{X}\boldsymbol{\beta} \right)^{T} \mathbf{H}^{-1} \left(\mathbf{y} - \mathbf{X}\boldsymbol{\beta} \right) \right]$$

$$= -\frac{1}{2} \left[n \log \left(2\pi \right) + n \log \sigma_{e}^{2} + \log \det \mathbf{H} + \sigma_{e}^{-2} \left(\mathbf{y} - \mathbf{X}\boldsymbol{\beta} \right)^{T} \mathbf{H}^{-1} \left(\mathbf{y} - \mathbf{X}\boldsymbol{\beta} \right) \right]$$

$$= -\frac{1}{2} \left[n \log \left(2\pi \right) + n \log \sigma_{e}^{2} + \log \det \mathbf{H} + \sigma_{e}^{-2} \left(\mathbf{y} - \mathbf{X}\boldsymbol{\beta} \right)^{T} \mathbf{H}^{-1} \left(\mathbf{y} - \mathbf{X}\boldsymbol{\beta} \right) \right]$$

$$(86)$$

Let $\tau = \sigma_e^{-2}$, then $\sigma_e^2 = \tau^{-1}$, hence we have

$$l_{F}(\mathbf{y};\boldsymbol{\beta},\boldsymbol{\lambda},\tau) = l_{F}(\mathbf{y};\boldsymbol{\beta},\sigma_{g},\boldsymbol{\lambda})$$

$$= -\frac{1}{2} \left[n\log(2\pi) - n\log\tau + \log\det\boldsymbol{H} + \tau \left(\mathbf{y} - \boldsymbol{X}\boldsymbol{\beta}\right)^{T}\boldsymbol{H}^{-1}\left(\mathbf{y} - \boldsymbol{X}\boldsymbol{\beta}\right) \right]$$

$$= \frac{1}{2} \left[n\log\tau - n\log(2\pi) - \log\det\boldsymbol{H} - \tau \left(\mathbf{y} - \boldsymbol{X}\boldsymbol{\beta}\right)^{T}\boldsymbol{H}^{-1}\left(\mathbf{y} - \boldsymbol{X}\boldsymbol{\beta}\right) \right]$$

(87)

which is exactly the log-likelihood function of the standard LMM in GEMMA. In conclusion, both GEMMA and EMMA use the same LMM when $\lambda = \sigma_g^2/\sigma_e^2$ and $\tau = \sigma_e^{-2}$ (note that we do not require m = n). In other words, LMMs in Equations 25, 31, 66, 75, 76, and 81 are equivalent under aforementioned conditions. Moreover, they use the same relatedness matrix **K** in this case.

3.4.2 Equivalent posterior distributions of structural random effects

In this section, we demonstrate equivalence between algebra calculating posterior distributions of structural random effects based on different LMMs.

Equivalence to the posterior distribution derived for BugWAS On one hand, since $C_L^T C_L = (SQ)^T SQ = Q^T S^T SQ$, $Q^T Q = QQ^T = I_L$, and $Q^{-1} = Q^T$, we rewrite the posterior mean (Equation 51) using the centred SNP matrix *S*:

$$\boldsymbol{\mu} = \left(L\hat{\lambda}^{-1}\boldsymbol{Q}^{T}\boldsymbol{Q} + \boldsymbol{Q}^{T}\boldsymbol{S}^{T}\boldsymbol{S}\boldsymbol{Q}\right)^{-1}(\boldsymbol{S}\boldsymbol{Q})^{T}\boldsymbol{y} = \left[\boldsymbol{Q}^{T}\left(L\hat{\lambda}^{-1}\boldsymbol{I}_{L} + \boldsymbol{S}^{T}\boldsymbol{S}\right)\boldsymbol{Q}\right]^{-1}\boldsymbol{Q}^{T}\boldsymbol{S}^{T}\boldsymbol{y}$$
$$= \left[\boldsymbol{Q}\boldsymbol{Q}^{T}\left(L\hat{\lambda}^{-1}\boldsymbol{I}_{L} + \boldsymbol{S}^{T}\boldsymbol{S}\right)\boldsymbol{Q}\right]^{-1}\boldsymbol{S}^{T}\boldsymbol{y} = \boldsymbol{Q}^{-1}\left(L\hat{\lambda}^{-1}\boldsymbol{I}_{L} + \boldsymbol{S}^{T}\boldsymbol{S}\right)^{-1}\boldsymbol{S}^{T}\boldsymbol{y}$$
(88)
$$= \boldsymbol{Q}^{T}\left(L\hat{\lambda}^{-1}\boldsymbol{I}_{L} + \boldsymbol{S}^{T}\boldsymbol{S}\right)^{-1}\boldsymbol{S}^{T}\boldsymbol{y}$$

Similarly, the variance-covariance matrix (Equation 56) of the posterior distribution can be rewritten as

$$\boldsymbol{\Delta} = \hat{\tau}^{-1} \left(\boldsymbol{C}_{L}^{T} \boldsymbol{C}_{L} + L \hat{\lambda}^{-1} \boldsymbol{I}_{L} \right)^{-1} = \hat{\tau}^{-1} \left(\boldsymbol{Q}^{T} \boldsymbol{S}^{T} \boldsymbol{S} \boldsymbol{Q} + L \hat{\lambda}^{-1} \boldsymbol{Q}^{T} \boldsymbol{Q} \right)^{-1}$$

$$= \hat{\tau}^{-1} \left[\boldsymbol{Q}^{T} \left(\boldsymbol{S}^{T} \boldsymbol{S} + L \hat{\lambda}^{-1} \boldsymbol{I}_{L} \right) \boldsymbol{Q} \right]^{-1} = \hat{\tau}^{-1} \boldsymbol{Q}^{-1} \left(\boldsymbol{S}^{T} \boldsymbol{S} + L \hat{\lambda}^{-1} \boldsymbol{I}_{L} \right)^{-1} \boldsymbol{Q}$$
(89)
$$= \hat{\tau}^{-1} \boldsymbol{Q}^{T} \left(\boldsymbol{S}^{T} \boldsymbol{S} + L \hat{\lambda}^{-1} \boldsymbol{I}_{L} \right)^{-1} \boldsymbol{Q}$$

On the other hand, based on the same equations by Kendall, authors of BugWAS have directly deduced the posterior distribution of $\boldsymbol{\delta}$ for the LMM (Equation 75) used in BugWAS under the null hypothesis where $\boldsymbol{\beta} = 0$ [6]. Specifically, $\boldsymbol{\delta}|\boldsymbol{y}$ follows a

multivariate normal distribution that takes as parameters the REML estimates of λ' and τ (cf. source code of BugWAS).

$$\boldsymbol{\delta} \sim MVN_L(\boldsymbol{\mu}_{\boldsymbol{\delta}}, \boldsymbol{\Delta}_{\boldsymbol{\delta}}) \tag{90}$$

$$\boldsymbol{\mu}_{\boldsymbol{\delta}} = \left(\boldsymbol{S}^{T}\boldsymbol{S} + \frac{1}{\hat{\lambda}'}\boldsymbol{I}_{L}\right)^{-1}\boldsymbol{S}^{T}\boldsymbol{y}$$
(91)

$$\boldsymbol{\Delta}_{\boldsymbol{\delta}} = \hat{\boldsymbol{\tau}}^{-1} \left(\boldsymbol{S}^T \boldsymbol{S} + \frac{1}{\hat{\boldsymbol{\lambda}}'} \boldsymbol{I}_L \right)^{-1}$$
(92)

Since $\boldsymbol{S} = \boldsymbol{P}\boldsymbol{\Sigma}\boldsymbol{Q}^T = \boldsymbol{C}_L\boldsymbol{Q}^T$, we have $\boldsymbol{S}\boldsymbol{\delta} = \boldsymbol{C}_L\boldsymbol{Q}^T\boldsymbol{\delta}$. Let $\boldsymbol{\gamma}_{\delta} = \boldsymbol{Q}^T\boldsymbol{\delta}$ and $\hat{\lambda} = L\hat{\lambda}'$, we can obtain an affine transformation of the posterior multivariate normal distribution of the structural random effects $\boldsymbol{\gamma}_{\delta}$:

$$\boldsymbol{\gamma}_{\boldsymbol{\delta}} \sim MVN_L\left(\boldsymbol{\mu}_{\boldsymbol{\delta}}^{\prime}, \boldsymbol{\Delta}_{\boldsymbol{\delta}}^{\prime}\right) \tag{93}$$

$$\boldsymbol{\mu}_{\delta}^{\prime} = \boldsymbol{Q}^{T} \boldsymbol{\mu}_{\delta} = \boldsymbol{Q}^{T} \left(\boldsymbol{S}^{T} \boldsymbol{S} + \frac{1}{\hat{\lambda}^{\prime}} \boldsymbol{I}_{L} \right)^{-1} \boldsymbol{S}^{T} \boldsymbol{y} = \boldsymbol{Q}^{T} \left(\boldsymbol{S}^{T} \boldsymbol{S} + L \hat{\lambda}^{-1} \boldsymbol{I}_{L} \right)^{-1} \boldsymbol{S}^{T} \boldsymbol{y}$$
(94)

$$\boldsymbol{\Delta}_{\delta}^{\prime} = \boldsymbol{Q}^{T} \boldsymbol{\Delta}_{\delta} \boldsymbol{Q} = \hat{\tau}^{-1} \boldsymbol{Q}^{T} \left(\boldsymbol{S}^{T} \boldsymbol{S} + L \hat{\lambda}^{-1} \boldsymbol{I}_{L} \right)^{-1} \boldsymbol{Q}$$
(95)

Both $\boldsymbol{\mu}_{\delta}'$ and $\boldsymbol{\Delta}_{\delta}'$ are exactly the same as Equations 88 and 89. As such, the structural random effects $\boldsymbol{\gamma}$ in our model (Equation 25) and the $\boldsymbol{\delta}$ in the BugWAS model are interconnected in terms of their posterior multivariate normal distributions given observations \boldsymbol{y} and \boldsymbol{S} .

Posterior distribution of structural random effects computed using reduced SVD We can derive the posterior distribution of structural random effects given y through the reduced form of SVD as well. Using the reduced form of SVD, we have shown the equivalent form of our LMM in Formulae 31 and 32, where $S = UDV^T$ and $C_r = UD = SV$. Since Formulae 25 and 31 only differ in the vector for sizes of structural random effects (that is, γ versus γ_r), substituting C_L with C_r and I_L with r in Equation 58 immediately produces the posterior distribution:

$$\boldsymbol{\gamma}_r | \boldsymbol{y} \sim MVN_n(\boldsymbol{\mu}_r, \boldsymbol{\Delta}_r) \tag{96}$$

$$\boldsymbol{\mu}_{r} = \left(\boldsymbol{C}_{r}^{T}\boldsymbol{C}_{r} + L\hat{\boldsymbol{\lambda}}^{-1}\boldsymbol{I}_{r}\right)^{-1}\boldsymbol{C}_{r}^{T}\boldsymbol{y}$$
(97)

$$\boldsymbol{\Delta}_{r} = \hat{\boldsymbol{\tau}}^{-1} \left(L \hat{\boldsymbol{\lambda}}^{-1} \boldsymbol{I}_{r} + \boldsymbol{C}_{r}^{T} \boldsymbol{C}_{r} \right)^{-1}$$
(98)

Moreover, since Equation 13 shows $\boldsymbol{Q} = \begin{bmatrix} \boldsymbol{V}_{L \times r} & \boldsymbol{W}_{L \times (L-r)} \end{bmatrix}$, we rewrite Equation 88 as

$$\boldsymbol{\mu} = \boldsymbol{Q}^{T} \left(L \hat{\lambda}^{-1} \boldsymbol{I}_{L} + \boldsymbol{S}^{T} \boldsymbol{S} \right)^{-1} \boldsymbol{S}^{T} \boldsymbol{y} = \begin{bmatrix} \boldsymbol{V}^{T} \\ \boldsymbol{W}^{T} \end{bmatrix} \left(L \hat{\lambda}^{-1} \boldsymbol{I}_{L} + \boldsymbol{S}^{T} \boldsymbol{S} \right)^{-1} \boldsymbol{S}^{T} \boldsymbol{y}$$

$$= \begin{bmatrix} \boldsymbol{V}^{T} \left(L \hat{\lambda}^{-1} \boldsymbol{I}_{L} + \boldsymbol{S}^{T} \boldsymbol{S} \right)^{-1} \boldsymbol{S}^{T} \boldsymbol{y} \\ \boldsymbol{W}^{T} \left(L \hat{\lambda}^{-1} \boldsymbol{I}_{L} + \boldsymbol{S}^{T} \boldsymbol{S} \right)^{-1} \boldsymbol{S}^{T} \boldsymbol{y} \end{bmatrix}$$
(99)

The top partition, $\mathbf{V}^T \left(L\hat{\lambda}^{-1}\mathbf{I}_L + \mathbf{S}^T \mathbf{S} \right)^{-1} \mathbf{S}^T \mathbf{y}$, equals the posterior mean of $\mathbf{\gamma}_r$ given \mathbf{y} ; the second partition, $\mathbf{W}^T \left(L\hat{\lambda}^{-1}\mathbf{I}_L + \mathbf{S}^T \mathbf{S} \right)^{-1} \mathbf{S}^T \mathbf{y}$, equals the posterior mean of $\mathbf{\gamma}_{L-r}$ that always get cancelled in our LMM (Equation 25) because $\mathbf{c}_j = 0$ when $j = r+1, r+2, \cdots, L$. Moreover, this partition does not involve in the LMM (Equation 31) and we are not interested in $\mathbf{\gamma}_{L-r}$ as the accompanying projections do not reveal any variation in \mathbf{S} (namely, no genetic variation is captured by these effects).

Similarly, we can convert the posterior variance-covariance matrix (Equation 58) of γ into the following form:

$$\boldsymbol{\Sigma} = \hat{\boldsymbol{\tau}}^{-1} \boldsymbol{Q}^{T} \left(\boldsymbol{S}^{T} \boldsymbol{S} + L \hat{\boldsymbol{\lambda}}^{-1} \boldsymbol{I}_{L} \right)^{-1} \boldsymbol{Q} = \hat{\boldsymbol{\tau}}^{-1} \begin{bmatrix} \boldsymbol{V}^{T} \\ \boldsymbol{W}^{T} \end{bmatrix} \left(L \hat{\boldsymbol{\lambda}}^{-1} \boldsymbol{I}_{L} + \boldsymbol{S}^{T} \boldsymbol{S} \right)^{-1} \begin{bmatrix} \boldsymbol{V}_{L \times r} & \boldsymbol{W}_{L \times (L-r)} \end{bmatrix}$$
$$= \hat{\boldsymbol{\tau}}^{-1} \begin{bmatrix} \boldsymbol{V}^{T} \left(\boldsymbol{S}^{T} \boldsymbol{S} + L \hat{\boldsymbol{\lambda}}^{-1} \boldsymbol{I}_{L} \right)^{-1} \boldsymbol{V} & \boldsymbol{V}^{T} \left(\boldsymbol{S}^{T} \boldsymbol{S} + L \hat{\boldsymbol{\lambda}}^{-1} \boldsymbol{I}_{L} \right)^{-1} \boldsymbol{W} \\ \boldsymbol{W}^{T} \left(\boldsymbol{S}^{T} \boldsymbol{S} + L \hat{\boldsymbol{\lambda}}^{-1} \boldsymbol{I}_{L} \right)^{-1} \boldsymbol{V} & \boldsymbol{W}^{T} \left(\boldsymbol{S}^{T} \boldsymbol{S} + L \hat{\boldsymbol{\lambda}}^{-1} \boldsymbol{I}_{L} \right)^{-1} \boldsymbol{W} \end{bmatrix}$$
(100)

The top-left $r \times r$ partition, $\hat{\tau}^{-1} \boldsymbol{V}^T \left(\boldsymbol{S}^T \boldsymbol{S} + L \hat{\lambda}^{-1} \boldsymbol{I}_L \right)^{-1} \boldsymbol{V}$, reveals the posterior variancecovariance between elements of $\boldsymbol{\gamma}_r$, in which we are interested for our model defined by Equation 31. Therefore, we have the posterior distribution of $\boldsymbol{\gamma}_r$, that is, Equation 96, in the null model of Equation 31 given \boldsymbol{y} and \boldsymbol{K} :

$$\boldsymbol{\mu}_{r} = \boldsymbol{V}^{T} \left(L \hat{\boldsymbol{\lambda}}^{-1} \boldsymbol{I}_{L} + \boldsymbol{S}^{T} \boldsymbol{S} \right)^{-1} \boldsymbol{S}^{T} \boldsymbol{y}$$
(101)

$$\boldsymbol{\Delta}_{r} = \hat{\boldsymbol{\tau}}^{-1} \boldsymbol{V}^{T} \left(\boldsymbol{S}^{T} \boldsymbol{S} + L \hat{\boldsymbol{\lambda}}^{-1} \boldsymbol{I}_{L} \right)^{-1} \boldsymbol{V}$$
(102)

which is exactly the posterior distribution of structural random effects calculated by

package BugWAS¹. We can also deduce this distribution directly from the BugWAS model with the reduced form of SVD. More specifically, since $\mathbf{S} = UD\mathbf{V}^T = \mathbf{C}_r \mathbf{V}^T$, we can deduce that $\mathbf{S}\boldsymbol{\delta} = \mathbf{C}_r \mathbf{V}^T \boldsymbol{\delta}$. Let $\boldsymbol{\gamma}_{\delta}' = \mathbf{V}^T \boldsymbol{\delta}$, knowing the posterior mean (Equation 91) and variance-covariance matrix (Equation 92) of $\boldsymbol{\delta}$, we can derive the posterior distribution of $\boldsymbol{\gamma}_{\delta}'$ given \boldsymbol{y} through an affine transformation of the posterior multivariate normal distribution of $\boldsymbol{\delta}$:

$$\boldsymbol{\gamma}_{\delta}'|\boldsymbol{y} \sim MVN_L\left(\boldsymbol{\mu}_{\delta}', \boldsymbol{\Delta}_{\delta}'\right) \tag{103}$$

$$\boldsymbol{\mu}_{\delta}^{\prime} = \boldsymbol{V}^{T} \boldsymbol{\mu}_{\delta} = \boldsymbol{V}^{T} \left(\boldsymbol{S}^{T} \boldsymbol{S} + \frac{1}{\hat{\lambda}^{\prime}} \boldsymbol{I}_{L} \right)^{-1} \boldsymbol{S}^{T} \boldsymbol{y}$$
(104)

$$\boldsymbol{\Delta}_{\boldsymbol{\delta}}^{\prime} = \boldsymbol{V}^{T} \boldsymbol{\Delta}_{\boldsymbol{\delta}} \boldsymbol{V} = \hat{\boldsymbol{\tau}}^{-1} \boldsymbol{V}^{T} \left(\boldsymbol{S}^{T} \boldsymbol{S} + \frac{1}{\hat{\boldsymbol{\lambda}}^{\prime}} \boldsymbol{I}_{L} \right)^{-1} \boldsymbol{V}$$
(105)

Evidently, μ'_{δ} and Δ'_{δ} are identical to μ_r and Δ_r in Equation 96, proving that the equivalence between posterior distributions in our LMM (Equation 31) and the Bug-WAS model still holds under the reduced form of SVD. This is an ideal conclusion. Nevertheless, we note that authors of the BugWAS article use the following inference to the calculate the posterior distribution of structural random effects:

$$\boldsymbol{C} = \boldsymbol{S}\boldsymbol{V}_n \Longrightarrow \boldsymbol{S} = \boldsymbol{C}\boldsymbol{V}_n^{-1} \Longrightarrow \boldsymbol{S}\boldsymbol{\delta} = \boldsymbol{C}\boldsymbol{V}_n^{-1}\boldsymbol{\delta} \Longrightarrow \boldsymbol{\gamma}_{\boldsymbol{\delta}} = \boldsymbol{V}_n^{-1}\boldsymbol{\delta}$$
(106)

where V_n denotes the first *n* columns of Q and it is computed using the R function *prcomp*. We consider this inference invalid because V is a rectangular matrix, to which an ordinary matrix inverse does not apply. Furthermore, we argue that only the first *r* columns of Q (that is, the $L \times r$ matrix V) should be used in this reduced form of SVD for efficiency because *r* is always less than *n* (as BugWAS also uses the zero-centring process) and the n - r excessive eigenvectors in Q do not capture population structure and hence are not informative.

3.4.3 Interpretations of the fixed effect size

Herein, we are concerning the meaning of the fixed effect parameter β in our LMMs (Equations 25 and 31). Let dichotomous random variables *X* and *Y* denote the presenceabsence of alleles a_x and a_y , respectively, in a sample. In particular, we do not perform zero-centring on observations of *X* or *Y* in this section to make our description clearer, although the centring does not affect our conclusions.

¹Note that Equation 102 in the article publishing BugWAS differs from the one implemented in the code of BugWAS. Based on algebra shown in this section, we inclined to consider the equation in the BugWAS article incorrect due to a typo.

The first interpretation of parameter β is the change in the conditional mean of Y, namely, E(Y|X), given a unit change in X under constraints that $\Delta X = -1$ when X = 1 and $\Delta X = 1$ when X = 0 at the beginning. To be more specific, let $E(Y|X) = E(Y|X + \Delta X) - E(Y|X)$. Since for a given genome, $E(Y|X) = E(\alpha + X\beta + u + \varepsilon)$, and random variables (u and ε) are independent of X following the model setting, we have $\Delta E(Y|X) = \beta \Delta X$, which can be denoted by $\Delta E(Y|\Delta X)$. This is a general interpretation and it is the same as the meaning of regression coefficients in a simple linear model.

Second, when $\beta > 0$ in particular, this fixed effect becomes the probability of observing an allele a_y in a genome given an acquisition event of the other allele a_x . Assuming there are *n* genomes (where *n* is sufficiently large) in total, which were nevertheless void of alleles a_x and a_y , then n_x and n_y of these genomes acquired a_x and a_y , respectively, via HGT. As such, the observation of ΔX , denoted by Δx , increases to one in these n_x genomes. Let n_{xy} denote the number of genomes harbouring both alleles. Noticing $\Delta x = 0$ if a genome does not have the a_x allele, for the n_x observations we can derive:

$$\Delta E(Y|\Delta X = 1) \approx \bar{\mathbf{y}}|_{x=1} = \frac{n_{xy}}{n_x} = \beta$$
(107)

where $\Delta x = 1$ and **y** is a vector for observations of *Y* in the *n* genomes. Therefore, a positive β can be understood as the probability of observing a_y when allele a_x is successfully transferred into a bacterium.

Moreover, when X and Y do not show perfect separation as required by ordinary logistic regression [15], in other words, neither P(Y = 1|X = 0) nor P(Y = 1|X = 1) equals one or zero and hence 0 < E(Y|X = x) < 1, a positive β can also be interpreted as an approximation of an odds ratio through expanding a logistic model into a Maclaurin series. Specifically, let f(x) = P(Y = 1|X = x), and let scalars *m* and *b* be the intercept and slope of the logistic model, respectively, then 0 < f(x) < 1 and the Maclaurin expansion

$$f(x) = \frac{e^{m+xb}}{e^{m+xb}+1} = \frac{e^m}{e^m+1} + \frac{be^m}{\left(e^m+1\right)^2} + o\left(x^2\right), x \to 0$$
(108)

holds when treating *x* as a continuous variable and letting *x* be close to zero. Furthermore, we can approximate f(1) = P(Y = 1 | X = 1) using this expansion. Since *Y* follows a Bernoulli distribution conditioning on *X*, we have E(Y|X = x) = P(Y = 1 | X = x). Referring to the conditional mean of *Y* in our LMM for a given genome, which is $0 < E(Y|X = x) = \alpha + x\beta < 1$ given $x \in \{0, 1\}$ and $\beta > 0$, we can deduce that $0 < \alpha < 1$ and approximation

$$\alpha + x\beta \approx \frac{e^m}{e^m + 1} + \frac{be^m}{\left(e^m + 1\right)^2}x\tag{109}$$

Let
$$\alpha = \frac{e^m}{e^m+1}$$
 and $\beta = \frac{be^m}{(e^m+1)^2}$, we have $m = \ln \frac{\alpha}{1-\alpha}$ and $b = \frac{\beta(e^m+1)^2}{e^m} = \frac{\beta}{\alpha(1-\alpha)}$. As

such, the odds ratio of Y is approximated using fixed effect sizes α and β in the LMM via equation

$$OR(Y|X = 1 \text{ vs. } X = 0) = \frac{odds(Y = 1 \text{ vs. } Y = 0|X = 1)}{odds(Y = 1 \text{ vs. } Y = 0|X = 0)} = e^b = \exp\frac{\beta}{\alpha(1 - \alpha)}$$
(110)

We use GEMMA to perform a Wald test to determine if $\beta = 0$ under a certain confidence level (Section 3.1.10).

3.4.4 Incapability of parameter estimation between identical variables

A crucial constraint of GEMMA in estimating parameters of LMMs is that parameter estimation does not work between identical variables. Let $\mathbf{y} = \mathbf{x}$, then model in Equation 25 becomes $\mathbf{0} = \mathbf{1}\alpha + \mathbf{x}\beta' + \mathbf{C}_L \boldsymbol{\gamma} + \boldsymbol{\varepsilon}$, where $\beta' = \beta - 1$. As such, the target function $l_{r1}(\lambda; \mathbf{0}, \mathbf{x}, \mathbf{K})$ (cf. Formula 38) does not exist because one of its items $(\mathbf{y}^T \mathbf{W}_x \mathbf{y})$ for logarithm becomes zero. Therefore, GEMMA does not return a valid log-likelihood or REML estimates for parameters of variance components under this condition. We confirmed that this behaviour is the same for ordinary maximum-likelihood (ML) estimates for a similar reason (the denominator in the ML estimate of τ reaches zero — cf. Section 3.1.1 in the supplementary document of the GEMMA article [4]). As a result, our approach is not applicable to identically distributed alleles or genes.

4 Supplementary methods of the validation study

This section demonstrates steps of applying GeneMates to the *E. coli* and *Salmonella* data sets for validation [16, 17].

4.1 Collection of whole-genome sequencing data

Supplementary File 2 tabulates details of bacterial genomes whose WGS data were recruited for our validation study. For *E. coli* data, we used paired-end 100 bp reads (Illumina HiSeq2000) from 185 atypical enteropathogenic *E. coli* genomes from Africa and South Asia between 2008 and 2010 during the Global Enteric Multicentre Study (GEMS) [18, 19]. Most genomes were obtained from faecal samples. To ensure high read quality and purity, we inspected base and read quality using MultiQC [20], which compiled reports of FastQC v0.11.5 [21]. All read sets were accepted at this stage. We merged overlapping reads with FLASH [22] because a high level of overlapping reads was detected.

As for *Salmonella* data, we took paired-end Illumina reads (length: 76–150 bp) from 373 genomes of *S. enterica* serovar Typhimurium definitive type 104 (DT104), which

were sampled between 1990 and 2011 [17]. The reads were generated using Illumina Genome Analyzer II or IIx, HiSeq2000, and MiSeq platforms. According to the original publication [17], we removed 14 known atypical DT104 genomes (All of them were isolated in Scotland) as they are genetically more similar to non-DT104. The remaining genomes included 275 Scottish genomes, 23 English or Welsh genomes, 51 Canadian genomes and 10 Japanese genomes. Finally we carried out the same steps for quality control as those for the *E. coli* data except the use of FLASH, because the *Salmonella* reads showed a low level of overlapping.

4.2 Extraction of core-genome SNPs

We mapped de-overlapped *E. coli* reads to the chromosome sequence of *E. coli* serovar 0103:H2 strain 12009 (GenBank association: AP010958) using RedDog V1beta.10.3 (github.com/katholt/RedDog) under its default parameters. This reference genome had been previously shown to yield the highest read coverage for this data set [19]. To obtain reliable SNP calls, we identified repetitive and prophage regions in the reference genome using MUMmer v3.23 (\geq 90% nucleotide identity to call repetitive) and PHASTER (accessed on 26 November 2017), respectively [23, 24], and filtered out SNPs within those regions. We applied the same mapping process to *Salmonella* reads, for which the chromosome sequence of DT104 (GenBank association: HF937208) was used as the reference. Instead of using PHASTER, which was under maintenance at the time (22 March 2018), PHAST [25] was used to identify prophages.

A challenge in the analysis of HGcoT is the requirement for homogenous read sets, namely, reads from DNA of a pure bacterial culture. A DNA library for sequencing may be contaminated due to mixed bacterial cultures or artefacts in the library preparation. To evaluate heterogeneity in a read set, we compared coordinates and minor allele frequencies (MAFs) of heterozygous SNP calls to those of homozygous SNPs, given the fact that *E. coli* and *S. enterica* are haploid organisms. Any read set showing congruent MAFs of the heterozygous SNPs across the whole reference genome was considered potentially contaminated. Altogether, 16 *E. coli* genomes and one *Salmonella* genome were excluded due to possible contamination, leaving 169 *E. coli* genomes and 359 *Salmonella* genomes for following steps.

4.3 Phylogenetic reconstruction

For each bacterial species, five independent RAxML (v8.2.9) runs were launched on homozygous SNPs in sites that were present in 99% of genomes to obtain an optimal unrooted maximum-likelihood phylogeny [26]. A unique combination of seeds was set for the random-number generator of RAxML in each run. To calculate bootstrap

supports for branches on each phylogenetic tree, in each run we specified RAxML to repeat the tree inference for 125 iterations for *E. coli* genomes and 200 iterations for *Salmonella* genomes. The tree displaying the greatest log-likelihood was chosen as the best tree for further analyses.

4.4 Detection of antimicrobial resistance genes

Based on our curated ARG-ANNOT database (ARGannot_r2.fasta, available in the GitHub repository of SRST2) [27], we screened AMR genes in all genomes using SRST2 v0.2.0 (arguments determining presence of an ARG: > 90% query coverage, \geq 90% nucleotide identity, > 5 fold average read depth and > 2 fold edge depths) [28]. We evaluated reliability of ARG calls based on per-base read depths calculated by SRST2 (Section 4.4.1). Next, for each bacterial species, we pooled consensus sequences of reliable gene calls in all genomes and clustered them under a nucleotide identity of 100% using CD-HIT-EST v4.6 [29]. An identifier was then assigned to each unique sequence to represents an allele of an AMR gene.

Since there was a complete chromosome sequence and plasmid sequences included for the *Salmonella* strain DT104, we could achieve high resolution and accuracy in gene detection via directly aligning reference allele sequences from ARGannot_r2.fasta against complete genomes using nucleotide BLAST [30]. Therefore, geneDetector (github.com/wanyuac/geneDetector) was developed to convert BLAST results into SRST2 compatible formats. Consensus allele sequences extracted by geneDetector were pooled with those from SRST2 for sequence clustering and subsequent allele identifier assignment, producing an allelic PAM from reliable allele calls.

4.4.1 Evaluation of allele-call reliability

We used PAMmaker (github.com/wanyuac/PAMmaker), a helper tool of GeneMates, to evaluate reliability of allele calls of AMR genes. Specifically, PAMmaker read score files in SRST2 outputs and classified an allele call as sufficiently reliable if the call satisfied the following criteria:

- When no truncation (at one or both ends of a reference) or deletion (flanked by remaining bases) of at least two bases was present in the alignment of reads against a reference allele sequence, the average read depth > 5 fold, edge read depths ≥ 2 fold, and the nucleotide divergence ≤ 10%.
- When any truncations were present, nucleotide divergence ≤ 10%, the average read depth > 5 and read depths that neighbour truncations > 2.

4.5 *De novo* genome assembly

De novo assembly of *E. coli* and *Salmonella* genomes was conducted using Unicycler v0.4.1 [31], which implements SPAdes v3.10.1 for short-read assembly [32] and leverages paired-end reads to optimise initial assembly graphs from SPAdes via bridging gaps, merging nodes, and correcting assembly errors. In this study, we specified Unicycler to turn the SPAdes option of read correction off as this process turned out to be too conservative for some read sets to get the assembly pipeline successfully run through. Other options were kept default (see Unicycler manual for details). Finally, we gathered assembly graphs from Unicycler for measuring APDs and concatenated assembly statistics for further quality assessment of read sets.

4.6 Measurement of allelic physical distances

Physical distances between alleles of AMR genes were measured in genome assemblies for each bacterial species. Since the distance measurement was complicated in unfinished short-read assemblies, we took an empirical simulation-and-validation strategy to determine criteria for removing unreliable measurements. The overall procedure was that, for each species, we simulated Illumina reads from complete genomes of 10 MDR strains that were drawn from non-sibling lineages in a published species dendrogram (NCBI genome database, accessed in November 2017), reassembled synthetic reads into assembly graphs using the same method as real reads, and for each pair of coding sequences (CDSs), we compared APDs from assembly graphs to their real distances. See Tables s2 and s3 for details of selected *E. coli* and *S.* Typhimurium strains. We used FastANI v1.0 to calculate whole-genome average nucleotide identities (ANIs) between these strains.

For *E. coli* genomes, we used ART (version MountRainier) and its build-in Illumina HiSeq2000 error profile to simulate 100-bp pair-end reads at a read depth of 89 fold (the median depth covering the 169 *E. coli* genomes according to the RedDog outputs), a mean insert size of 220 bp with a standard deviation of 71 bp (both arguments are medians for this data set) [33]. For *Salmonella* genomes, we simulated short reads from the Illumina HiSeq2000 platform under a 76 bp read length, a 251 bp insert size with a 76 bp standard deviation and a 75 fold read depth in accordance with summary statistics of actual read sets of the shortest read length (76 bp). To ensure sufficient specificity in locating CDSs in every assembly for the distance measurement, a hit of each CDS was reported by the nucleotide BLAST to Bandage only if it covered at least 95% of the CDS under a nucleotide identity of at least 95% and displayed an e-value of at most 1×10^{-5} . These parameters were kept the same for subsequent applications. Further, in order to compare the distance measurements and the reference distances in an efficient manner, we randomly selected 250k measurements per strain from the distances measured in

paths of at most 10 nodes in assembly graphs.

For the 169 *E. coli* genomes and 359 *Salmonella* genomes, we took consensus allele sequences of accessory AMR genes as queries, took assembly graphs and contigs as subjects, and used Bandage to measure the shortest-path distances (SPDs) in genome assemblies of each species. It is self-evident that, for the same pair of alleles, their SPD equals the APD in a complete genome and contig. Since we found that SPDs in contigs were more accurate than those in assembly graphs, we prioritised SPDs according to their sources and kept the SPD from contigs when there were SPDs measurable in both a contig and a graph. Furthermore, when calling function *findPhysLink*, we specified the function to filter out any measurements obtained from more than two nodes or stretched longer than 250 kbp to ensure that more than 90% of remaining distance measurements were accurate when tolerating errors not exceeding ± 1 kbp. Note that since Unicycler may create a contig from multiple nodes in an assembly graph, SPDs in a single node may differ from those in a single contig in accuracy.

4.7 Network analysis

Network construction We used function *findPhysLink* to construct a linkage network for alleles of AMR genes detected in each example data set. In particular, we excluded alleles of known intrinsic AMR genes (*ampH*, *ampC1*, *ampC2* and *mrdA* of *E. coli*, and *aac6-Iaa* of *S. enterica*). Following the method for validating BugWAS [6], we did not filter alleles for a minimum frequency or co-occurrence count in order to include all possible allele pairs. In order to investigate effects of controlling for population structure on estimates of fixed effects, we fitted simple penalised logistic models (PLMs), implemented in GeneMates function *plr*, for the same allele pairs. A significant fixed effect of an explanatory allele on a response allele was determined when the hypothesis test on the effect size β in an LMM (Wald test) or a PLM (two-sided chi-squared test) returned a Bonferroni-corrected p-value ≤ 0.05 . We compared LMM-based p-values to those based on PLMs for the same explanatory and response alleles, and grouped the differences based on the estimate $\hat{\lambda}_0$ for the null LMM ($Y \sim 1$) of each response allele, because λ_0 reveals the proportion of variation in *Y* explained (PVE) by population structure in the absence of any explanatory allele [4].

Visualisation Result tables produced by function *findPhysLink* for each species were exported to Cytoscape v3.6.1 for network visualisation. In every network, each node represented one or more alleles sharing the same distribution amongst genomes (We confirmed that the distance score $s_d = 1$ for edges between each of these identically distributed alleles to its neighbour nodes) and each edge represented a significant fixed effect ($\hat{\beta}$ in an LMM or PLM) of an explanatory allele X on a response allele Y in the

linear model $Y \sim X$. Attributes of each edge included the fixed effect size $\hat{\beta}$ ($-1 \leq \hat{\beta} \leq 1$) and a distance score s_d ($0 \leq s_d \leq 1$).

Analyses LMM-based linkage networks were analysed for three purposes. First, in order to validate the ability of LMMs in identifying co-mobilised alleles of AMR genes, we compared edges to known mobile ARG clusters — plasmid-borne AMR genes in *E. coli* [16]. Second, in order to show the effect of controlling for population structure in association tests, for each species we merged LMM-based and PLM-based linkage networks into a comparative network highlighting shared and unique edges in each kind of linkage networks. Finally, we identified maximal cliques in each linkage network using package igraph, extracted corresponding nucleotide sequences from genome assemblies, and searched them against GenBank (www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/genbank) to discover co-transferred alleles of acquired AMR genes.

References

- [1] Argimón, S., Abudahab, K., Goater, R.J.E., Fedosejev, A., Bhai, J., Glasner, C., Feil, E.J., Holden, M.T.G., Yeats, C.A., Grundmann, H., Spratt, B.G., Aanensen, D.M.: Microreact: visualizing and sharing data for genomic epidemiology and phylogeography. *Microbial Genomics* 2(11), 000093 (2016). doi:10.1099/mgen.0.000093
- [2] Jain, C., Rodriguez-R, L.M., Phillippy, A.M., Konstantinidis, K.T., Aluru, S.: High throughput ANI analysis of 90K prokaryotic genomes reveals clear species boundaries. *Nature Communications* 9(1), 5114 (2018). doi:10.1038/s41467-018-07641-9
- [3] Boyd, D.A., Shi, X., Hu, Q.-h., Ng, L.K., Doublet, B., Cloeckaert, A., Mulvey, M.R.: Salmonella Genomic Island 1 (SGI1), Variant SGI1-I, and New Variant SGI1-O in Proteus mirabilis Clinical and Food Isolates from China. Antimicrobial Agents and Chemotherapy 52(1), 340–344 (2008). doi:10.1128/aac.00902-07
- [4] Zhou, X., Stephens, M.: Genome-wide efficient mixed-model analysis for association studies. *Nat Genet* 44(7), 821–824 (2012)
- [5] Boyd, D., Peters, G.A., Cloeckaert, A., Boumedine, K.S., Chaslus-Dancla, E., Imberechts, H., Mulvey, M.R.: Complete Nucleotide Sequence of a 43-Kilobase Genomic Island Associated with the Multidrug Resistance Region of Salmonella enterica Serovar Typhimurium DT104 and Its Identification in Phage Type DT120 and Serovar Agona. Journal of Bacteriology 183(19), 5725–5732 (2001). doi:10.1128/jb.183.19.5725-5732.2001
- [6] Earle, S.G., Wu, C.-H., Charlesworth, J., Stoesser, N., Gordon, N.C., Walker, T.M., Spencer, C.C.A., Iqbal, Z., Clifton, D.A., Hopkins, K.L., Woodford, N., Smith, E.G., Ismail, N., Llewelyn, M.J., Peto, T.E., Crook, D.W., McVean, G., Walker, A.S., Wilson, D.J.: Identifying lineage effects when controlling for population structure improves power in bacterial association studies. *Nature Microbiology* 1, 16041 (2016)
- [7] McVean, G.: A Genealogical Interpretation of Principal Components Analysis. PLOS Genetics 5(10), 1000686 (2009)
- [8] Patterson, N., Price, A.L., Reich, D.: Population Structure and Eigenanalysis. PLOS Genetics 2(12), 190 (2006)
- [9] Rencher, A.C.: *Linear Models in Statistics.*, 1st edn. *Wiley series in probability and statistics.* New York : Wiley, 2000., New York (2000)
- [10] Zhang, Y., Pan, W.: Principal Component Regression and Linear Mixed Model in Association Analysis of Structured Samples: Competitors or Complements? *Genetic* epidemiology 39(3), 149–155 (2015). doi:10.1002/gepi.21879

- [11] Demidenko, E.: Mixed Models : Theory and Applications with R, 2nd edn. Wiley series in probability and statistics. Hoboken, New Jersey : John Wiley & Sons, Inc., [2013], Hoboken (2013)
- [12] O'Hagan, A., Forster, J.: Kendall's Advanced Theory of Statistics. Vol. 2B. Bayesian Inference., 6th edn. John Wiley & Sons, Ltd., Chichester, London (2004)
- [13] Paradis, E., Claude, J., Strimmer, K.: APE: Analyses of Phylogenetics and Evolution in R language. *Bioinformatics* 20(2), 289–290 (2004). doi:10.1093/bioinformatics/btg412
- [14] Kang, H.M., Zaitlen, N.A., Wade, C.M., Kirby, A., Heckerman, D., Daly, M.J., Eskin, E.: Efficient Control of Population Structure in Model Organism Association Mapping. *Genetics* 178(3), 1709–1723 (2008)
- [15] Zorn, C.: A solution to separation in binary response models. Political Analysis, 157–170 (2005)
- [16] Ingle, D.J., Levine, M.M., Kotloff, K.L., Holt, K.E., Robins-Browne, R.M.: Dynamics of antimicrobial resistance in intestinal *Escherichia coli* from children in community settings in South Asia and sub-Saharan Africa. *Nature Microbiology* 3(9), 1063–1073 (2018). doi:10.1038/s41564-018-0217-4
- [17] Mather, A.E., Reid, S.W.J., Maskell, D.J., Parkhill, J., Fookes, M.C., Harris, S.R., Brown, D.J., Coia, J.E., Mulvey, M.R., Gilmour, M.W., Petrovska, L., de Pinna, E., Kuroda, M., Akiba, M., Izumiya, H., Connor, T.R., Suchard, M.A., Lemey, P., Mellor, D.J., Haydon, D.T., Thomson, N.R.: Distinguishable Epidemics Within Different Hosts of the Multidrug Resistant Zoonotic Pathogen Salmonella Typhimurium DT104. Science 341(6153), 1514–1517 (2013). doi:10.1126/science.1240578
- [18] Kotloff, K.L., Nataro, J.P., Blackwelder, W.C., Nasrin, D., Farag, T.H., Panchalingam, S., Wu, Y., Sow, S.O., Sur, D., Breiman, R.F., Faruque, A.S.G., Zaidi, A.K.M., Saha, D., Alonso, P.L., Tamboura, B., Sanogo, D., Onwuchekwa, U., Manna, B., Ramamurthy, T., Kanungo, S., Ochieng, J.B., Omore, R., Oundo, J.O., Hossain, A., Das, S.K., Ahmed, S., Qureshi, S., Quadri, F., Adegbola, R.A., Antonio, M., Hossain, M.J., Akinsola, A., Mandomando, I., Nhampossa, T., Acácio, S., Biswas, K., O'Reilly, C.E., Mintz, E.D., Berkeley, L.Y., Muhsen, K., Sommerfelt, H., Robins-Browne, R.M., Levine, M.M.: Burden and aetiology of diarrhoeal disease in infants and young children in developing countries (the Global Enteric Multicenter Study, GEMS): a prospective, case-control study. *The Lancet* 382(9888), 209–222 (2013). doi:10.1016/S0140-6736(13)60844-2
- [19] Ingle, D.J., Tauschek, M., Edwards, D.J., Hocking, D.M., Pickard, D.J., Azzopardi, K.I., Amarasena, T., Bennett-Wood, V., Pearson, J.S., Tamboura, B., Antonio, M., Ochieng, J.B., Oundo, J., Mandomando, I., Qureshi, S., Ramamurthy, T., Hossain, A., Kotloff, K.L., Nataro, J.P., Dougan, G., Levine, M.M., Robins-Browne, R.M., Holt, K.E.: Evolution of atypical enteropathogenic *E. coli* by repeated acquisition of LEE pathogenicity island variants. *Nature Microbiology* 1, 15010 (2016)

- [20] Ewels, P., Magnusson, M., Lundin, S., Käller, M.: MultiQC: summarize analysis results for multiple tools and samples in a single report. *Bioinformatics* 32(19), 3047–3048 (2016). doi:10.1093/bioinformatics/btw354
- [21] Andrews, S.: FastQC: A quality control tool for high throughput sequence data. Reference Source (2010)
- [22] Magoč, T., Salzberg, S.L.: FLASH: fast length adjustment of short reads to improve genome assemblies. *BIOINFORMATICS* 27(21), 2957–2963 (2011). doi:10.1093/bioinformatics/btr507
- [23] Kurtz, S., Phillippy, A., Delcher, A.L., Smoot, M., Shumway, M., Antonescu, C., Salzberg,
 S.L.: Versatile and open software for comparing large genomes. Genome Biology 5(2) (2004)
- [24] Arndt, D., Grant, J.R., Marcu, A., Sajed, T., Pon, A., Liang, Y., Wishart, D.S.: PHASTER: a better, faster version of the PHAST phage search tool. Nucleic Acids Research 44(W1), 16–21 (2016)
- [25] Zhou, Y., Liang, Y., Lynch, K.H., Dennis, J.J., Wishart, D.S.: PHAST: A Fast Phage Search Tool. Nucleic Acids Research (2011). doi:10.1093/nar/gkr485
- [26] Stamatakis, A.: RAxML version 8: a tool for phylogenetic analysis and post-analysis of large phylogenies. *Bioinformatics* 30(9), 1312–1313 (2014). doi:10.1093/bioinformatics/btu033
- [27] Gupta, S.K., Padmanabhan, B.R., Diene, S.M., Lopez-Rojas, R., Kempf, M., Landraud, L., Rolain, J.M.: ARG-ANNOT, a new bioinformatic tool to discover antibiotic resistance genes in bacterial genomes. *Antimicrob Agents Chemother* 58(1), 212–220 (2014). doi:10.1128/aac.01310-13
- [28] Inouye, M., Dashnow, H., Raven, L.-A., Schultz, M., Pope, B., Tomita, T., Zobel, J., Holt, K.: SRST2: Rapid genomic surveillance for public health and hospital microbiology labs. *Genome Medicine* 6(11), 90 (2014)
- [29] Li, W., Godzik, A.: Cd-hit: a fast program for clustering and comparing large sets of protein or nucleotide sequences. *Bioinformatics* 22(13), 1658–1659 (2006). doi:10.1093/bioinformatics/btl158
- [30] Altschul, S.F., Gish, W., Miller, W., Myers, E.W., Lipman, D.J.: Basic local alignment search tool. *Journal of Molecular Biology* 215(3), 403–410 (1990). doi:10.1016/S0022-2836(05)80360-2
- [31] Wick, R.R., Judd, L.M., Gorrie, C.L., Holt, K.E.: Unicycler: Resolving bacterial genome assemblies from short and long sequencing reads. *PLOS Computational Biology* 13(6), 1005595 (2017)

- [32] Bankevich, A., Nurk, S., Antipov, D., Gurevich, A.A., Dvorkin, M., Kulikov, A.S., Lesin, V.M., Nikolenko, S.I., Pham, S., Prjibelski, A.D., Pyshkin, A.V., Sirotkin, A.V., Vyahhi, N., Tesler, G., Alekseyev, M.A., Pevzner, P.A.: SPAdes: a new genome assembly algorithm and its applications to single-cell sequencing. *Journal Of Computational Biology: A Journal Of Computational Molecular Cell Biology* 19(5), 455–477 (2012). doi:10.1089/cmb.2012.0021
- [33] Huang, W., Li, L., Myers, J.R., Marth, G.T.: ART: A next-generation sequencing read simulator. *Bioinformatics* 28(4), 593–594 (2012). doi:10.1093/bioinformatics/btr708